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GENERATING
SUSTAINABLE

VALUE FOR OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

FARNINGS BEFORE T UK PROPERTY PORTFOLIO  DIVIDEND YIELD OF
INTEREST, TAX, £3 5 m|"|0n CONTINUES TO PERFORM 50/

DEPRECIATION AND EBITDA IN THE SECOND WELL WITH A NEW 0

AMORTISATION (EBITDA) OF  HALF OF THE YEAR £6 m | | I | on AT YEAR END SHARE PRICE
£4.6 million LOAN FACILITY SIGNED

(2013 £3.0 million) WITH SANTANDER UK PLC
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s Statement

I am very pleased to be able to
inform shareholders that your
Company achieved earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation {(EBITDA) of
£4.6 million (2013: £3.0 million).
Of these earnings, £3.5 million
were generated in the second

half of the year.

To a significant extent, this strong performance
n the second half of the year can be attnbuted
to the successful mplementation of the
turnaround plan put in place by your
management i London and at Black Wattle
Colliery, our direct coal mining asset, in
South Afnica

As reported last year, at the end of 2013 the
open cast mining operations at Black Wattle
were severely impacted when one of our
man production pits ran into unrecorded old
underground workings A turnaround plan
was put in ptace This involved the swift
movernent of the machinery to two of our
more profitable production pits in order to
increase production from these areas

Ailthough the plan nmally suffered a short-term
set-back caused by the unusually heavy
rainfall in the first quarter of 2014, Black Wattie
steadily increased production from its lower
costing pits  This increased production from
the two existing pits ensured that the mine
returned to acceptable levels of profitability
in the second half of 2014
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In regard to the new reserve at Blue Nightingale,
plans were inittated to develop the reserve by
the end of 2014 We are pleased to report
that delivery of coal from the reserve has
commenced and we expect the reserve to
begin to contnbute to earnings in 2015

Black Wattle continues to perform well under
the Quattrc Programme, which allows junior
black-economic empowerment coal producers
direct access to the coal export market via
Richards Bay Goal Terminal We would ke
to thank Vunan Limited, our black economic
empowered shareholders at Black Wattle, for
managing and developing this opportunity

During the second half of last year, Black
Wattle became a leve! 4 contnbutor to Broad
Based Black Economic Empowerment
(“BBBEE™ Qur staff deserve our thanks for
their hard work in achieving this status as
well as for therr continued efforts in improving
our BBBEE rating and credentials

The coal mined during the year, at a lower
cost of production than 2013, helped offset
the impact of the weaker international coal
pnces experienced throughout 2014 Although
we expect depressed coal prices to continue,
Black Wattle will continue rts focus on keeping
its cost of production low and we remain highly
confident on the prospects of our coal mining
activities tn South Afnca

The Company's UK retail property portfolio,
which underpins the Group and which 1s
managed actively by London & Associated
Properties PLC, continues to perform well
We are pleased to report that iIn December
2014, the group signed a £6 rmullion 5-year
term loan faciity with Santander UK PLC
This new ipan replaces the previous £5 million
term faciiity and overdraft facility held with
Royal Bank of Scotland This new loan 15
secured aganst the group’s UK retall property
portiolio which was externally valued at

the 2014 year end at £11 6million

(2013 £11 émullion)

On the behalf of all shareholders, | would like
to thank Robert Corry, who retired at the end
of 201 4, for his services to the Group Robert,
a director of Black Wattle Collery for over 20
years, has made a significant contnbution to
the development of our coal business and
the banking side of Bisichi’s UK property
portfolio We wish him the very best in his
retirement

Finally, your directors have decided to hold
the dividend at the 2013 level and will
recommend to you, our shareholders, a final
dwidend of 3p (2013 3p} payable on Friday
31 July 2015 to shareholders registered at
the close of business on 3 July 2015 making
the total for the year 4p (2013 4p) Based on
the 2014 year end share pnce, this represents
a 5% yield, which is at the high end of the
mining sector

On behalf of the Beard and shareholders,
I would hke to thank all of cur staff for their
hard work during the course of the year

Sir Michael Heller
Chairman

27 April 2015




Equality

Black Wattle
Colliery has
achieved

18.5 percent
women in core
mining and

has exceeded
the 10 percent
target of women
iIn management
and core mining




Procurement

During 2014
Black Wattle
became a level
4 contributor
to Broad Based
Black Economic
Empowerment




STRATEGIC REPORT

Mining Review

The strong earnings achieved in
the second half of the year at
Black Wattle, our South African
coal mining operation, can be
mainly attributed to improved
production at Black Wattle's
profitable opencast pits.

Although we continue to operate in an
environment of histoncally low coal pnces,
we expect the changes implemented at
Black Wattle to result In a continued strong
performance from our Scuth Afncan
operations gotng into 2015

PRODUCTION AND OPERATIONS
Although overall Run of Mine production
fromn Black Wattle wezkened in 2014, with
total production for the year of 1 53mullion
metnc tonnes (2013 1 77million metnc
tonnes), production improved 1n the second
haff of the year Average monthly Run of Mine
production increased from 115,000 metnc
tonnes in the first half of the year to 140,000
metnc tonnes i the second half

As announced in the Charman’s Statement,
we are expecting a contnbution to earnings
from the Blue Nightingale reserve in 2015
Blue Nightingale, 1s a South Afncan black
owned and managed mining company and
we are very pleased to be continuing our
successful relationship As previously
reported, the coal delivered 1s part of an
agreement to purchase Run of Mine coal
from an opencast reserve nearby to Black
Wattle Additional driling at year end has
confirmed that the reserve consists of
approximately 2 6million tonnes of coal
which can be sold either directly to local
power utilities or transported to Black Wattle
where it will be washed and sold into our
exishng domestic and export markets

Black Wattle will look to combine production
from Black Wattle's existing reserves with
coal receved from the new reserve at Blue
Nightingale

MAIN TRENDS/MARKETS

Intemational coal pnces continued to weaken
At the beginning of 2014, the average weekly
price of Free on Board (FOB) Coal from
Richards Bay Coal Terminal (API4) was $85
By the end of the year the pnce had weakened
to under $64 Further weakness in 2015 has
seen the coal pnce go below $60, less than
half the price of $120 achieved three years
previously n 2011 A depreciation in the South
Afncan Rand against the US Daollar has helped
to partially offset this decline Lcoking forward,
we continue to see strong demand for our
coal in both the domestic and export markets
and we will continue to focus on keeping our
cost of production low in order to offset the
impact of lower international coal prices

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT (HSE)
Black Wattle 1s commutted to creating a safe
and healthy warking environment for its
employees and the health and safety of our
employees 1s of the utmost importance

HSE performance n 2014

* No new cases of Occupational Diseases
were recorded

* Zero claims for the Compensation for
Occupaticnal Diseases were submitted

* No machines operating at Black Wattle
exceeded the regulatory noise level

* Black Wattle Colliery recorded one Lost
time Injury dunng 2014

In addihon to the required personnel
appointrments and assignment of direct
health and safety responsibilities on the
mine, a system of Hazard Identification and
Risk Assessments has been designed,
implemented and maintained at Black Watile

Health and Safety training 1s conducted on
an ongoing basis We are pleased to report
all employees to date have received training
in hazard dentdication and nsk assessment
N their work areas

A medical survelllance system 1s also in place
whuch provides management with information
used in determining measures to eliminate,
control and minimise employee heaith nsks
and hazards and all Occupational Health
hazards are monitored on an ongoing basis

Vanous systems to enhance the current HSE
strategy have been introduced as follows

+ |n order to improve hazard identification
before the commencing of tasks, mini nsk
assessment booklets have been distnbuted
to all mine employees and long term
contractors on the mine

+ A Job Safety Analysis form has been
introduced to ensure effective identification
of hazards in the werkplace

+ In order to improve the current reporting
practice of incidents on the mine, mitial
reporting of ncidents booklets were
handed out to all employees and
contractors

= 'n order to capture and record investigation
findings from incidents, an incident recording
sheet was introduced to line management
and contractors

* Black Wattle Colliery utlises ICAM
(Incident Cause Analysis Methed)

+ Hazard |dentification and Risk Assessment
training was gven to all levels of employees,
line management, Heads of Departrments,
contractor representatives and contractor
ermployees

* Ongoing training on conveyor belt
operation 1S being conducted with all
employees involved wath this discipline

Bisicht Mining PLC 05




STRATEGIC REPORT Miming Review continued

ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT
PROGRAMME

Under the terms of the mine’s Environmental
Management Programme approved by the
Department of Mineral Resource (*DMR"),
Black Wattle undertakes a host of environmental
protection actmties to ensure that the approved
Ernvironmental Management Plan is fully
implemented In addion to these routine
actwties, Black Wattle regularly carnes out
environmental monitonng activities on and
around the mine, including evaluation of ground
water qualty, air qualty, noise and ighting
tevels, ground vibrations, ar blast monitonng,
and assessment of visual impacts

Black Wattle 1s fully compliant with the regulatory
requirements of the Department of Water Affars

and Forestry and has an approved and extemnally

audited water use licence

Black Wattte Collery has substantially mproved
its water management by erecting and
upgrading all its polluticn control dams in
consultation with the Department of Water
Affairs and Forestry

A performance assessment audit was conducted
to verfy compliance to our Environmental
Management Programme and no significant
dewviations were found

06 Bisichi Mining PLC

BLACK WATTLE COLLIERY SOCIAL AND
LABQUR PLAN (SLP) PROGRESS

Black Wattle Colliery 1s commutted to true
transiormation and empowerment as well as
poverty eradication within the surrounding and
labour providing communities

Black Watitle 1s committed to providing
opportunities for the sustainable socic-economic
development of its stakeholders, such as

*« Employees and ther families, through Skills
Development, Education Development,
Human Resource Development,
Empowerment and Progression
Programmes

+ Surrounding and labour sending
communities, through Local Economic
Developrnent, Rural and Community
Devalopment, Housing and Living Condition,
Enterpnse Development and Procurement
Programmes, and

* Empowerment partners, through Broad-Based
Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE)
and Joint Ventures wath Histoncally
Disadvantaged South Afncan {HDSA) new
mining entrants and enterpnses

* The Company engages in ongoing
consultation with 1ts stakeholders to develop
strong company-emplcyee relationships,
strong company-community relationships
and strong company-HDSA enterpnse
relatonships

The key focus areas in terms of the detaled
SLP programmes were updated as follows

+« New mplementation action plans, projects,
targets and budgets were established through
regular workshops with alt stakehoiders

* A comprehensive desktop socio-economic
assessment was underiaken on baseline
data of the Steve Teshwete Local Municipality
{STLM) and Nkangala District Municipality
(NDM)

¢ The current Black Wattle Collery Local
Ecenomic Development (LED) pregrammes
were upgraded, and new LED projects were
selected in consultation with the key
stakeholders from the STLM

* An appropnate forum was established on
the mine and a process intiated for the
consultation, empowerment and partcipation
of the employee representatves in the Black
Wattle Colliery SLF process

+ Black Wattle Collery has concluded
extensive work on various Agncultural
projects as well as the E-Bag Recycling
projects The E-Bag Recyceling project ams
to minimize the envircnmental impact of
post-consumer Polyethylene Terephthalate
plastic {PET) on the South Afncan
landscape The project was awarded the
PET Entrepreneur award for 2013 and the
project was awarded a new baling machine
as part of the award An additional piece of
ground has been identified to extend the
project to a different area within the Mhiuzi
Township nearby to Black Wattle Dunng
2014 the project self-funded the purchase of
an addnional baling maching, an important
milestone In bnnging the project to a position
of self-sustainability

Various upgrades were intiated at the
Evergreen School nearby to Black Wattle
including upgrades to the roof, classrooms
and outer areas



STRATEGIC REPORT Mining Review continued

PROCUREMENT

As reported in the Charman’s Statement,
Black Wattle Collery 1s now a level 4 BBBEE
contnbutor

In compliance with the Minng Charter and the
Mineral and Petroleum Resource Development
Act, Black Wattle has mplemented a BBBEE-
focussed procurement palicy which strongly
encourages our sugpliers to establish and
maintan BBBEE credentials At present, BBBEE
companies provide approximately 80 percent
of Black Wattle's equipment and services We
closely monitor our monthly expenditure and
welcome potential BBBEE suppliers to compete
for equipment and service contracts at Black
Wattle Black Wattle also sells much of its coal
produets to empowered companies

EMPLOYMENT IN SOUTH AFRICA

As part of Black Wattle’s commutment to the
South Afncan government Mining Charter, the
Company seeks to

+ Expand opportunities for histoncally
disadvantaged South Afncans (HDSAs),
Including women, to enter the miing and
minerals industry and benefit from the
extraction and processing of the country’s
resources,

Utilise the existing skills base for the
empowerment of HDSAs, and

+ Expand the skilts base of HDSAs in order
serve the community

In addition Black Wattle 1s committed to
achieving the goals of the South Afncan
Employment Equity Act and 1s pleased to
report the following

+ Black Wattle Colliery has exceeded the 10
percent women in management and core
minng target

* Black Wattle Collery has achieved 18 5
percent women in core mining

* 94 percent of the women at Black Wattle
Collery are HDSA females

In terms of staff training some highlights for
2014 were

* 13 employees were traned in ABET
{Accreditation Board for Engineenng and
Technology) level one,

= An additional § disabled women have
started traning on ABET level one and two,
and

* Plans have been put in place for 2015 fora
further 10 employees to be trained on ABET
level one, twe or three and 1 employee will
be trained on ABET level four

* 4 HDSA Females have commenced
apprenticeship at the mine

PROSPECTS

Plans have been put n place to ensure Black
Watile 1s able to provide consistent production
from its own existing reserves as well as
reserves developed in partnership wath our
BEE partners Although international coal
pnces reman depressed, management
continue to remain confident in the ability to
achieve significant value from our existing
South Afncan mining operations

As a result, | look forward to the coming year
ith confidence

Andrew Heller
Managing Director

27 Apnl 2015
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People

Black Wattle

is committed
to providing
opportunities
for the
sustainable
SOCio-economic
development of
its employees



STRATEGIC REPORT

Risk & Performance

The directors present the
Strategic Report of the
Company for the year ending
31 December 2014. The aim

of the Strateqgic Report is to
provide shareholders with the
ability to assess how the
Directors have performed therr
duty to promote the success of
the Company for the collective
benefit of shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Chairman’s Statement and the Mining
Review which form part of the Strategic
Report on the preceding pages 2 to 7 give a
comprehensive and farr review of the group'’s
activities durning the past year and prospects
for the forthcoming year

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY, STRATEGY &
BUSINESS MODEL

The Company cammes on business as a
mining company and its pnncipal actvity 1s
coal mining in Scuth Africa The Company's
strategy is to create and deliver long terms
sustainable value to our stakeholders
through our bustness model which can be
broken down into four key areas

* acquinng and securing addittonal coal
reserves m South Afnca

e coal mining
* coal washing
* coal transportation and marketing

10 Bisichy Mining PLC

In addition to the four key areas outhned
above, we seek to balance the high nsk of
our mming operations with a dependable
cash flow from our UK property investment
operations The Company invests in retal
property across the UK The UK property
portfolio 1s managed by London &
Associated Properties PLC whose
responsibifity 1s to actively manage the
portfolio to iImprove rental ncome and thus
enhance the value of the portfoho over time

RISK & UNCERTAINTIES

Coal pnce nsk: The group's mining
operational earnings are largely dependent
on movements in the coal pnce

Coal washing The group’s mining operation’s
earnings are highly sensitive to coal washing,
therefore a stoppage or disruption to the
process could significantly impact earnings
However, there Is scope to raise earnings
substantially ff the yield from the washing
process 15 improved even margnally

Mining nsk Attached to mining there are
inherent health and safety nsks Any such
safety mcidents disrupt operations, and can
slow or even stop production The group has
a comprehensive Health and Safety
programme in place to mitigate this As with
many mining operations, the reserve that 1s
mined has the nsk of not having the qualities
and accessibility expected from geclogical
and environmental analysis

Currency nsk The group’s South Afncan
operations are sensitive to currency
movements, especially those between the
South African Rand, US Dollar and Bntish
Pound

New reserves and mining permissions:
The acquisithon of additional reserves,
permissions to mine and new mining
opportunities In South Afnca generally are
contingent on a number of factors outside
of the group’s control, e g approval by the
Department of Mineral Rescources and the
Department of Water Affars and Forestry

Regulatory nsk The group’s South Afnican
operations are subject to the government
Miming Charter and scorecard which pnmanly
seeks to

+ Promote equitable access to South Afnca’s
mineral resources for all people in South
Afnca,

Expand opportunities for histoncally
disadvantaged South Africans (HDSAs),
including women, to enter the mining and
minerals ndustry and benefit from the
extraction and processing of the country’s
resources,

« Utiise the existing skills base for the
empowerment of HDSAs,

* Expand the skills base of HDSAs in order
to serve the community,

¢ Promote employment and the social and
econormic welfare of mining commurities
and areas supplying mining labour; and

Promote beneficiation of South Afnica’s
mineral commgodities beyond mining and
processing, including the production of
consurner goods

The group continues to make good progress
towards meeting the Charter requirements
However any regulatory changes to these,
or fallure to meet existing targets, could
adversely affect the mine’s ability to retan
its miming rights in South Africa




Product

Black Wattle
produced
1.53 million
metric tonnes
of Run of Mine
coal in 2014
(2013:1.77
million metric
tonnes)

..................




STRATEGIC REPORT Risk & Performance continued

Transport nisk: At present the government
owned Transnet Fraight Rail (TFR) 1s the sole
rail freight prowider for coal in South Afnca The
group's South African operations are therefore
relant on TFR for delivery of its export quality
coal directly or indirectly via the Southern
Afncan ports to its end customers

Power supply nsk The current utility
provider for power supply in Scuth Africa 1s the
government run Eskom Eskom continues to
undergo capacity problems resulting in power
cuts and lack of provision of power supply to
new projects The group's mining operations
have to date not been affected by power cuts

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Flooding nsk The group's mining operaticns
are susceptble to seasonal flooding which
could disrupt production Management monitors
water levels on an ongoing basis and vanous
projects have been completed, including the
construction of addiicnal dams, to mitigate
this nsk

Environmental nsk The group’s South
Afncan mining operations are required to
adhere to local ermaronmental regulations
Details of the groups Ervironment Management
Programme are disclosed in the Mining Review
on page 6

Health & Safety nsk The group’s South
Afncan mining operations are required tc adhere
to local Health and Safety regulations Detals
of the group’s Health and Safety Programme
are disclosed In the Mining Review on page 5

The Key Performance Indiwcators for the Group are

Labour nsk The group’s mining cperations
and coal washing plant facility are labour
ntensive and unionised  Any labour disputes,
strikes or wage negotiations may disrupt
production and Impact earnings

Cashflow nsk We seek to balance the high
nsk of cur mining operations with a dependable
cash flow from our UK property investment
operations Fuctuaticns in property values, which
are refiected in the Consolidated Income
Statement and Balance Sheet, are dependent
on an annual valuaton of commercial properties
A fallin UK commercial property can have a
marked effect on the profitability and the net
asset value of the group However, due to the
long term nature of the leases, the effect on
cash flows from property nvestment actvities
will remain stable as long as tenants remain in
operation

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
For South African mining activities
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortisation (EBITDA) 3,139 2,268
For our UK property investment operations:
Net property valuation 11,575 11,659
For the Group.
Profit before tax 1,568 102
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amaorhisation (EBITDA} 4,609 3,039
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STRATEGIC REPORT Risk & Performance continued

FINANCIAL POSITICN

In December 2014, the group signed a £6
million term loan facility with Santander This
new loan replaces the previous £5 million term
facility and overdrait held with Royal Bank of
Scotland The Loan is secured against the
group's UK retall property portfolio The new
debt package has a five year term and is
repayable at the end of the term  The interest
cost of the loan 1s 2 35% above LIBOR

The property portfolio was externally valued at
31 Decernber 2014 and the value of UK

nvestment properties attnbutable to the group
at year end was £11 6milion (2013 £11 6million)

In South Africa, an Increase in the structured
trade finance facility from R60milion {South
Afncan Rand) to R80miflion was signed by
Black Wattle Collery (Pty) Limited ("Black
Wattle”) in Qctober 2013 with Absa Bank
Limited, a South Afncan subsidiary of Barclays
Bank PLC The facility 1s renewed annually at
30 June and 1s secured aganst inventory,
debtors and cash that are held in the group's
South Afncan operations This faciity comprises
of a RB0Omillion revolving loan to cover the
working capital requrements of the group's
South Afncan operations, and a R20million
loan faciity to cover guarantee requwements
related to the group’s South African mining
operations

The group's cash and cash equivalents
{excluding bank overdrafts) at year end were
£2 8milion (2013 £1 7millon) The net assets
of the group at the year end were £17 7milion
{213 £17 Omillon} Dunng 2012 the Company
lent £2milion to Dragon Retal Properties Limited,
our joint venture company at 6 875 per cent
annual interest This meney 1s repayable on
demand and not included in the groups ¢ash
and cash equivalents

The group has considerable financial resources
avallable at short notice including cash, held for
trading nvestments and its £2m loan to
Dragon Retall Properties Limited

Further details on the group's financial position
are stated in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
on page 42

CASHFLOW

The Company at year end had a net amount
of cash and cash equivalents (ncluding bank
overdrafts) of 20 7 million (2013 net balance
owing of £1 3 million} Details on the group's
cashflow position are stated in the Consolidated
Cashflow Statement on page 45 Cash and
cash equivalents as per the Cashflow Statement
comprise Cash and cash equivalents as
presented in the balance sheet and bank
overdrafts {secured)

ENVIRONMENT

The group's UK actvites are pnncipaly property
nvestment whergby we provide premises
which are rented to retal businesses We seek
to provide those tenants with good quanty
premises from which they can operate in an
efficient and environmentally sound manner

Further information relating to the Company’s
position on the Environment and Environmentat
Management issues related to our South
Afncan operations can be found in The Mining
Review which forms part of the Strategic
Report on the preceding pages 5to 7

EMPLOYMENT

Employment terms and conditions for our
employees based at our UK office and at our
South Afncan mining operations are regulated
by and are operated in compliance with all
relevant prevailing naticnal and local legislation
Employment terms and conditions provided to
mining staff meet or exceed the natonal average

Further nformation relating to the Company's
positicn on Employment 1ssues can be found
in The Mining Review which forms part of the
Strategic Report on the preceding pages 5to 7

GREEN HOUSE GAS REPORTING

We have reported on all of the emission
sources required under the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Reports)
Regulations

The group has employed the Operational
Centrol boundary definition to outline our
carbon footprint boundary Included wathin that
boundary are Scope 1 & 2 emissions from coal
extraction and onsite mining processes for
Black Wattle Collery We have not measured
and reported on our Scope 3 emissions
sources Excluded from the footpnnt boundary
are emission sources considered non matenal
by the group, including refngerant use onsite

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard {revised
editiorn) and a methodology adapted from the
intergovernmental Panef on Climate Change
(2006) 1o calculate fugitve emissions from surface
coal mining activiies Further emission

factors were used from UK Government's

GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting 2015

Bisichi Mining PLC 13



Environmental
Management

Black Wattle
undertakes

a host of
environmental
protection
activities to
ensure that
the approved
Environmental
Management
Plan is fully
implemented
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STRATEGIC REPORT Risk & Performance continued

The Group’s carbon footpnnt
2014 2013
CO,e CO.e
Tonnes Tonnes
Emussions source
Scope 1 Combustion of fue! & operation of facilites 14,867 24 862
Scope 1 Emissicns from coal mining activities 26,872 31,014
Scope 2 Eiectnerty, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 8,300 9,947
Total 50,039 65,823
Intensity
Intensity 1 Tonnes of CC, per pound sterling of revenue 000189 000188
Intensity 2 Tonnes of CO, per tonne of coal produced 00327 00372

SOCIAL, COMMUNITY AND HUMAN
RIGHTS ISSUES

The Company believes that it 1s In the
shareholders’ interests to consider social and
human nghts issues when conducting
business actmties both in the UK and South
Afnca Further information relating to the
Company's position on socia and commurity
issues can be found in the Mining Review
which form part of the Strategic Report on the
preceding pages 5to 7

DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND GENDER
REPRESENTATION

At the year end the group had 6 directors

{6 male, O fernaie), 7 serior managers § male,
1 female) and 217 employees (165 male,

52 female)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The group seeks to expand its operations In
South Africa through the acguisition of
addtional coal reserves Further information on
the autlook of the Company can be found In
both the Charman’s Statement on page 2 and
the Mining Review on page 5 which form part
of the Strategic Report

Signed con behalf of the Board of Directors

Garrett Casey
Finance Drrector

27 Apnl 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Community

Black Wattle

is committed
to providing
opportunities
for surrounding
and labour
sending
communities
through its
Local Economic
Development
programme
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Bisichi Mining PLC,
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GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE

Five year summary

2014 2013 2012 201 2010
£000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Consolidated income statement
Revenue 26,500 35,105 35,962 29,909 32,824
Operating profit/ {loss) 1,364 123 2,568 {1,328} (1,708)
Profit/ {loss) before tax 1,568 102 2,180 (1,450) (1.813)
Trading profit before tax 1,157 17 2,808 {1,210 {2,209)
Revaluation profit before tax 411 85 618) (240) 396
Profit before interest, taxation and depreciation 4,609 3,039 4,684 1,150 770
Consolidated balance sheet
Investment properties 11,575 11,559 11,612 12,068 12,110
Fixed asset investments 4,090 4,370 4,309 2,727 3,757
15,665 15,929 15,921 14,795 15,867
Current asset investments 796 822 787 2,515 605
16,461 16,751 16,708 17,310 16,472
Other assets less labilities less non-controling Interests 854 (123} 607 537) 1,482
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders 17,315 16,628 17,315 16,773 17,954
Net assets per ordinary share 162.2p 156 3p 164 Op 158 9p 171 8p
Dividend per share 4.00p 4 G0p 4 00p 4 00p 4 00p
Financi ndar
ancial calend
10 June 2015 Annual General Meeting
31 July 2015 Payment of final dwidend for 2014 (if approved)
Late August 2015 Announcement of half-year results 1o 30 June 2015
Late April 2016 Announcement of results for year ending 31 December 2015

20 Bisichi Mining PLC




GOVERNANCE

Directors’ report

The directors submit their
report together with the audited
financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014,

ACTIVITIES AND REVIEW OF BUSINESS
The group continues its mining actmties
Income for the year was derved from sales of
coal from its South Afncan operations The
group also has a property investment portfolio
for which 1t receives rental iIncome

The results for the year and state of affars of
the group and the company at 31 December
2014 are shown on pages 40 to 80 and in the
Strategic Report on pages 2 to 15 Future
developments and prospects are alse covered
in the Strategic Report Over 99 per cent of
staff are employed n the South Afncan coal
mining industry ~ employment matters and
health and safety are dealt with in the Strategic
Report

The management report referred to in the
Director's responsibikties statement
encompasses this Directors’ Report and
Strategic Report on pages 2to 15

CORFPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
Environment

The environmental issues of the group’s South
Afncan coal mining operations are covered In
the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 15

The group's UK activities are principally
property Investment whereby premises are
provided for rent to retal busnesses

The group seeks to provide those tenants with
good quality premises from which they can
operate in an efficient and environmentatlly
frnendly manner Wherever possible,
improvements, repairs and replacements are
made in an environrmentally efficient manner
and waste re-cycling arangements are In
place at all the company’s locations

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Detals of the group’s greenhouse gas emissions
for the year ended 31 December 2014 can be
found on page 15 of the Strategic Report

Employment

The group's policy 1s to attract staff and motivate
employees by offering competitive terms of
employment The group provides equal
opportunities to all employees and prospective
employees including those who are disabled
The Strategic Report gves details of the group's
actvibes and policies concerning the employment,
traming, health and safety and commurity
support and social development concerning
the group’s employees in South Afnca

DIVIDEND POLICY

An intenm dividend for 2014 of 1p was paid on
6 February 2014 {Intenm 2013 1p) The directors
recommend the payment cf a final dividend for
2014 of 3p per ardinary share (2013 3p) makang
a total dvidend for 2014 of 4p (2013 4p)

Subject to shareholder approval, the total
dvidend per ordinary share for 2014 will be
4p per ordinary share

The final dvdend will be payable on Friday
31 July 2015 to shareholders registered at the
close of business on 3 July 2015

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment property portfolio 1s stated
at its open market value of £11,575,000, at
31 December 2014 (2013 £11,559,000) as
valued by professional external valuers The
open market value of the company's share
of nvestment properties included within its
invesiments in joint veniures is £4,021,000
(2013 £3,599,000)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Note 21 to the financial statements sets out
the nsks in respect of financial Instruments
The Board reviews and agrees overall treasury
palicies, delegating appropnate authonty to the
managing directar Financial instruments are
used to manage the financial nsks facing the
group - speculative transactions are not
permitted Treasury operations are reported at
each Board meeting and are subject to weekly
Internal reporting

DIRECTORS

The directors of the company for the whole
year were Sir Michael Heller, A R Heller, G J
Casey, C A Joll, R J Grobler (a South Afncan
citizen), and J A Stbbald

The directors retinng by rotation are Mr R J
Grobler and Mr A R Heller who offers
themselves for re-election

Robert Grobler was appointed as General Mine
Manager by Black Wattle Colliery (Propnetary)
Ltd on 1 May 2000 He was appanted to the
Board of Bisichi Mining PLC as Director of
Mining on 22 August 2008 He has over 40
years’ expenence in the South Afncan coal
mining industry He 1s a prefessional engineer
and member of the South Afncan Coal
Managers Association

Andrew Heller has been an executive director
since 1998 He s a Chartered Accountant and
has been employed by the group since 1994
under a contract of employment determinable
at three months’ notice

No drector had any matenal interest in any
¢contract or arrangement with the company
dunng the year other than as shown in this
report

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The interests of the directors in the shares of
the company, including family and trustee
holdings where appropriate, are shown on
page 30 of the Annual Remuneration Report
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GOVERNANCE Directors’ report continued

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS

The following have adwised that they have an
interest in 3 per cent or more of the issued share
capital of the company as at 27 Apnl 2015

London & Associated Properties PILC —
4,432,618 shares representing 41 52 per cent
of the 1ssued capital (Sir Michael Heller s a
director and shareholder of London &
Asscciated Properties PLC)

Sir Michael Heller — 330,117 shares
representing 3 08 per cent
of the i1ssued capital

A R Heller — 785,012 shares
representing 7 35 per cent
of the 1ssued capital

Cavendish Asset 1,671,610 shares

Management representing 15 7 per cent

Lirmited — of the i1ssued share capital

James Hyslop ~ 341,126 shares
representing 3 20 per cent

of the 1ssued share capital

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO
AUDITOR

The drrectors in office at 31 December 2014
have confirmed that they are aware that there
15 no relevant audit inforrnation of which the
auditor 1s unaware Each of the directors has
confirmed that they have taken all reasonable
steps they cught to have taken as directors to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that it has been
communicated to the auditor

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid-Size
Quoted Companies {the QCA Code) publshed
by the Quoted Companies Allance The QCA
Code provides governance guidance to small
and mid-size quoted companies The paragraphs
below set cut how the company has applied
this guidance dunng the year The company
has complied with the QCA Code throughout
the year
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PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The group's Board appreciates the value of
good corporate governance not only in the
areas of accountability and nsk management,
but also as a positive contnbution to business
prospenty The Board endeavours 1o apply
corporate governance prnciples in a sensible
and pragmatic fashion having regard to the
circumstances of the group's business The
key chiective 1s to enhance and protect
shareholder value

BOARD STRUCTURE

Durng the year the Board compnsed the
executive charrman, the managing director, two
other exacutive drectors and two non-executive
drectors Ther detalls appear on page 19 The
Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the
proper management of the group The Drectors’
responsi:lities statement in respect of the
accounts 1S set out on page 37 The non-executve
drectors have a partcular responsibility to ensure
that the strategies proposed by the executive
directors are fully considered To enable the
Board to discharge its duties, all directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information
and there 1s a procedure for all directors, in
furtherance of therr duties, to take independent
professional advice, If necessary, at the expense
of the group The Board has a formal schedule
of matters reserved to it and meets bi-monthly

The Board 1s responstble for overall group
strategy, approva! of major capital expendiiure
projects and conseration of significant
financing matters

The following Board committees, which have
written terms of reference, deal with specific
aspects of the group's affars

* The nomination commitiee 1s chaired by
Chnstopher Joll and compnses the
non-executive directors and the executive
charman The committee 1s responsible for
proposing candidates for appointment to the
Board, having regard to the balance and

structure of the Board In appropnate cases
recrutment consultants are used to assist
the process Each director is subject to
re-election at least every three years

The remuneration committee I1s responsible
for making recommendations to the Board
on the company's framework of executive
remuneration and ifs cost The committee
determines the contractual terms, remuneration
and other benefits for each of the executive
directors, including performanca related bonus
schemes, pension nghis and compensation
payments The Board itself determines the
remuneration of the non-executive directors
The committee compnses the non-executive
grectors It ts chared by Christopher Joll
The company's executive chairmar 1s nomally
nvited to attend meetings The report on
directors’ remuneration Is set Out on pages
2810 34

The audit committee comprises the two
non-executive directors and 1s chared by
Chnstopher Joll Its pnme tasks are to review
the scope of external audit, to receve regular
reports from the company’s auditor and to
review the hali-yearly and annual accounts
before they are presented to the Board,
focusing In particular on accounting policies
and areas of management judgment and
estimation The committee is responsible for
monttonng the controls which are In force to
ensure the Integnty of the information reported
to the shareholders The committee acts as
aforum for discussion of internal controt Issues
and contnbutes to the Board's review of the
effectiveness of the group'’s internal control
and nsk management systems and processes
The committee also considers annually the
need for an internal audit function It advises
the Board on the appointment of external
auditors and on their remuneration for both
audit and non-audit work, and discusses the
nature and scope of the audit with the extermal
auditors The committee, which mests formally
at least twice a year, provides a forum for
reporting by the group's external auditors



GOVERNANCE Directors’ report contnued

Meetings are also attended, by invitation, by
the company charman, managing director and
finance director

The audit commitiee also undertakes a formal
assessment of the auditors’ independence
each year which includes

* areview of non-audit services provided to
the group and related fees,

= discussion with the auditors of a written
report detaling all relationships with the
company and any other parties that could
affect ndependence or the perception of
independence,

* areview of the auditors’ own procedures for
ensunng the independence of the audtt firm
and partners and staff nvolved in the audit,
including the regular rotation of the audnt
partner, and

* cbhtaining written confirmation from the
auditors that, in their professional judgement,
they are independent

The audit committee report 1s set cut on
page 35

An analysis of the fees payable to the external

audit firm n respect of both audit and non-audit
services dunng the year 1s set out in Note 4 to

the financial staterments

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - BOARD,
BOARD GOMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS
The performance of the board as a whole and
of its committees and the non-executve directors
1s assessed by the charman and the managing
drector and 1s discussed with the senior
independent director Therr recommendations
are giscussed at the nomination committee pror
to proposals for re-election being recommended
to the Board The performance of executive
directors 1s discussed and assessed by the
remuneration committee The senior iIndependent
director meets regulady with the charman and
both the executive and non-executive directors
ndwvdualy outside of fonmal meetings. The drectors
will take outside advice in revewing performance
but have not found {his necessary to date

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The number of meetings durng 2014 and attendance at regular Board meetings and Board committees was as follows

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The senicr independent non-executive director
15 Chnstopher Joll The other independent
non-executive director 1s John Sibbald

Chnstopher Joll has been a non-executve director
for over ten years and John Sibbald has been
a non-executve drrector for over twenty years
The Board encourages Chnstopher Joll and
John Sibbald to act independently The board
considers that therr length of service and
connection with the company’s public relations
adwisers, does not, and has not, resulted in therr
inability or falure 10 act independentty In the
opnien of the Board, Chnstopher Joll and
John Sibbald continue to fulfil ther role as
ndependent non-executive directors

The ndependent directors regutarly mest
prior 1o Board meetings to discuss
corporate governance 1Ssues

Meetings held Meetings Attended

Sir Michaed Heller Board

Normination committee

A R Heller Board

Audit committee

G J Casey Board

Audit committee

R J Grobler Board

C A Jolt Board

Audit commitiee
Normination committee
Remuneration committee

J A Sibbald Board

Audit committee
Nomination committee
Remuneration committee

it e PR E R e R R RS Rl B e o)
e S I NS R T DN N NG S N S e o))
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INTERNAL CONTRCL

The directors are responsible for the group’s
system of internal control and review of its
effectiveness annually The Board has designed
the group's system of internal controt in order
to provide the direciors with reasonable assurance
that its assets are safeguarded, that transactions
are authonised and property recorded and that
matenal errors and rregulanties are either
pravented or would be detected wathin a timely
penod However, ne system of internal control
can eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve
business objectives or provde absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss

The key elements of the control system in
operaton are

e the Board meets regularly with a formal
schedu'e of matters reserved to t for decision
and has put in place an organisational
structure with clearly defined tines of
responsibility and with appropnate delegation
of avthenty,

* there are established procedures for planning,
approval and montonng of capital expenditure
and information systems for monitonng the
group's financial performance against
approved budgets and forecasts,

* UK property and financial cperations are
closely monitered by members of the Board
and senior managers 1o enable them to assess
nsk and address the adequacy of measures
in place for its moritonng and control The
South Afncan operatons are dosaly superased
by the UK based executves through daily,
weekly and monthly reports from the directors
and senior officers in South Afnca This 1s
supplemented by monthly visits by the UK
based finance director to the South Afncan
operations which mnclude checking the
integnty of Information supplied to the UK
The directors are guded by the internal
control guidance for directors issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales
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Dunng the penod, the audit commitiee has
reviewed the effectiveness of internal control as
descnbed above The Board receves pericdic
reports from its committeas

There are no significant 1ssues disclosed in the
Annual Report for the year ended 31 Decermnber
2014 (and up to the date of approval of the report)
concerning matenal internal controlissues The
directors confirm that the Board has reviewed
the efiectiveness of the system of internal
control as descnbed dunng the penod

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with shareholders 1s a matter
of prnionty Extensve information about the group
and its actvities 1s given in the Annual Report,
which is made avaiable to shareholders Further
information 1s avalable on the company’s
webstte, www bisichi co uk Thera 1s a regular
dialogue with institutional nvestors Enquines
from individuals on matters relating to ther
shareholdings and the business of the group
are dealt with informatively and promptly

TAKEOVER DIRECTIVE

The company has one class of share capital,
ordinary shares Each ordinary share cames
one vote Al the crdinary shares rank pan passu
There are no secunties issued In the company
which carry special nghts with regard to controt
of the company The identity of all substantial
drrect or indirect holders of secunties in the
company and the size and nature of therr
holdings 1s shown under the “Substantial
interests” section of this report above

A relationship agreement dated 15 September
2005 (the “Relationship Agreement”) was
entered into between the company and
London & Associated Properties PLC {(“LAP")
In regard to the arrangements between them
whilst LAP s a controling shareholder of the
company The Relationship Agreement
includes a proviston under which LAP has
agreed to exercise the voting nghts attached to
the ordinary shares in the company owned by

LAP to ensure the independence of the Board
of directors of the company

Other than the restricticns contaned in the
Relatonshup Agreement, there are ne restnctions
on voting nghts or on the transfer of ordinary
shares in the company The rules governing the
appointment and replacement of directors,
alteration of the articles of association of the
company and the powers of the company's
directors accord with usual English company
taw provisions Each director s re-elected at
teast every three years The company 1s not
party to any significant agreements that take
effect, alter or termnate upon a change of
control of the company following a takeover bid
The company 15 not aware of any agreements
between holders of its ordinary shares that may
resutt In restnctions on the transfer of ts ordinary
shares or on voting nghts

There are no agreements between the company
and ts directors or employees providing for
compensaton for loss of office or employment
that occurs because of a takeover bid

THE BRIBERY ACT 2010

The Bnbery Act 2010 came into force on 1 July
2011, and the Board took the opportunity to
mplerment a new Ant-Bnbery Policy All directors
and staff continue to complete an e-learning
training course on a bi-annual basis The
company 1s committed to acting ethically, farly
and with integrity in all its endeavours and
compliance of the code 1s closely monitored

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the company
(*Annual General Megting”) will be held at 24
Bruton Place, London W1J 8NE Wednesday,
10 June 2015 at 11 00 am Resolutions 1 to 8
will be proposed as ordinary resolutions More
than 50 per cent of shareholders’ votes cast
must be in favour for those resolutions to be
passed Resclutions 9 to 11 will be proposed
as special resolutions At least 75 per cent of
shareheclders' votes cast must be in favour for
those resolutions to be passed
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The directors consider that all of the resolutions
to be put to the meeting are In the best interests
of the company and its shareholders as a whole
The Board recommends that shareholders vote
in favour of all resolutions

Please note that the following paragraphs are
only summaries of certan resolutions to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting and
nct the full text of the resolutons You should
therefore read this section in conjunction with
the fult text of the rescluticns contained in the
notice of Annual General Meeting

DIRECTORS’ AUTHORITY TO ALLOT
SHARES (RESOLUTION 8)

In certain cireumstances it 1s iImportant for the
company to be able to allot shares upto a
maximum amount without needing to seek
shareholder approval every time an allotment is
requrred Paragraph 8 1 1 of Resolution 8 would
give the directors the authenty to allct shares in
the company and grant nghts to subscnbe for,
or convert ary secunty nito, shares n the company
up to an aggregate nominal value of £355,894
This represents approximately 1/3 (one third) of
the ordinary share capital of the company in
1ssue (excluding treasury shares) at 27 Apnl 2015
(being the last practicable date prior to the
publication of this Directors’ Report) Paragraph
81 2 of Resolution 8 would give the directors
the authonty to allot shares in the company
and grant nghts to subscnbe for, or convert
any secunty into, shares in the company up to
a further aggregate nominal value of £355,894,
in connection with a pre-emptive nghts 1ssue
This amount represents approximately 1/3 {one
third} of the ordinary share capiial of the company
in 1ssue {excluding treasury shares) at 27 April
2015 {peing the last practicable date pnor to
the publication of thus Directors' Report)

Therefore, the maximum nomina! value of shares
or nghts to subscnbe for, or convert any secunty
into, shares which may be allotted or granted
under resofution 81s £711,788

Resolution 8 comphes with guidance 1ssued by
the Investment Management Association ((MA)

The authonty granted by resolution 8 will expire
on 31 August 20186 or, if earlier, the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the
compary The direstors have no present intenton
to make use of this authonty However, if they
do exercise the authonty, the directors intend
to follow emerging best practice as regards its
use as recommended by the IMA

DISAPPLICATION OF PRE-EMPTION
RIGHTS (RESOLUTION 9}

A special resolution will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting In respect of the
disapplication of pre-emption nghts

Shares allotted for cash must normally first be
offered to shareholders in proportion to ther
exsting sharehcldings The directors wall, at the
forthcoming Annual General Mesting seek power
to allot equity secunties (as defined by section
560 of the Companies Act 2006) or sall treasury
shares for cash as if the pre-emption nghts
contained in Section 561 of the Companies
Act 2006 did not apply

{a) In redation to pre-emptve offers and offers to
holders of other equity secunties If required by
the nghts of those secunties or as the
drrectors otherwise considler necessary, up
to a maximum nominal amount of £355,894
which represents approximately 1/3 {one
third) of the ordinary share capital of the
company i i1ssue (excluding treasury shares)
and, in relation to nghts issues only, up to a
maxmum additonal amount of £355,894
which represents approximately 1/3 (one
third) of the ordinary share capital of the
company In Issue (excluding treasury
shares}, in each case as at 27 Aprl 2015
{(being the last practicable date pnor to the
publication of this Directors’ Report), and

) n any other case, up tO a maxmum nomnal
amount of £53,384 which represents
approximately 5 per cent of the ordinary
share capital of the company In 1ssue
(excluding treasury shares) as at 27 April
2015 (being the last practicable date pror to
the publication of this Drectors’ Report)

In compliance with the guidelines 1ssued by the
Pre-emption Group, the directors will ensure that,
other than in relation to a nghts 1ssue, No more
than 7 5 per cent of the issued ordinary shares
{excluding treasury shares) wall be allotted for
cash on a non pre-emptive basis over a rolling
three year period unless shareholders have
been notified and consulted in advance

The power In resclution 9 will expire when the
authonty given by resclution 81s revoked or
exprres

The directors have no present intention to
make use of this authonty

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS
{RESOLUTION 10}

Resolution 10 will be proposed to allow the
company to call general meetings (other than
an Annual General Meeting) on 14 clear days'
notice A resolution in the same terms was
passed at the Annual General Meeting in 2014
The notice period required by the Companies
Act 2006 for general meetings of the company
18 21 days untess shareholders approve a shorter
notice penod, which cannot however be less
than 14 clear days Annual General Meetings
must always be held on at least 21 clear days’
notice It is intended that the flexibility offered by
this resolution will only be used for tme-sensitive,
nen-routine business and where mented in the
interests of shareholders as a whole The
approval will be effective until the Company’s
next Annual General Meeting, when itis intended
that a similar resolution will be proposed In order
to be able to call a general meeting on less
than 21 clear days’ notice, the company must
make a means of electronic voting avallable to
all shareholders for that meeting
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PURCHASE OF OWN ORDINARY SHARES
(RESOLUTION 11}

The effect of resolution 11 would be to renew
the directors’ current authonty to make limited
market purchases of the company’s ordinary
shares of 10 pence each The power s imited
to a maximum aggregate number of 1,067,683
ordinary shares {representing approximately 10
per cent of the company's 1ssued share capital
as at 27 Apnl 2015 (being the last practicable
date pnor to publication of this Directors’ Report)}
The minmum price (exclusive of expenses)
which the company would be authonsed to
pay for each ordinary share would be 10 pence
{the nominal value of each ordinary share} The
maximum pnee @gain exclusive of expenses}
which the company would be authonsed to
pay for an ordinary share 1s an amount equal 1o
105 per cent of the average market pnce for
an ordinary share for the five business days
preceding any such purchase

The authonty conferred by resolution 11 will
expire at the conclusion of the company’s next
annual general meeting or 15 months from the
passing of the resolution, whichever is the earlier
Any purchases of ordinary shares would be
made by means of market purchase through
the London Stock Exchange !f granted, the
authonty would only be exercised if, in the
opinion of the directors, 1o do so would result
In an increase 1N earnings per share or net
asset value per share and would be in the best
interests of shareholders generally In exercising
the authonty to purchase ordinary shares, the
directors may treat the shares that have been
bought back as ether cancelled or held as
treasury shares (shares held by the company
itseify No dwidends may be paid on shares
which are held as treasury shares and no
voting nghts are attached to themn

As at 27 Apnl 2015 {peing the last practicable
date pnor to the publication of this Directors'
Report) the total number of options to
subsenbe for new ordinary shares in the
company was 598,000 shares representing
5 60 per cent of the company's 1ssued share
capital (excluding treasury shares) as at that
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date Such number of options to subscnibe for
new ordinary shares would represent
approxmately 6 22 per cent of the reduced
1ssued share capital of the company {excluding
treasury shares) assuming full use of the
authanty to make market purchases sought
under resclution 11

DONATIONS

No politcat or chantable donations were made
during the year (2013 Nil)

GOING CONCERN

The group’s business actmbies, together with the
factors likely 1o affect its future development
are set out In the Charman’s Statement on the
preceding page 2, the Mining Review on pages
5 to 7 and its financial position 1s set out on
page 13 of the Strategic Report In addibon
Note 21 to the financial statements Includes
the group’s treasury policy, interest rate nsk,
lIiquidity nsk and hedging profie

The group has considerable financeal resources
avallable at short notice including cash, held for
frading Investments and its £2m loan to Dragon
Retall Properties Limited which 1s repayable on
demand In addon s investment property assets
benefit from long term leases with the majonty
of its tenants Black Wattle Golkery, its direct
mining asset, expenenced an Improvernent In
profitability in the second half of 2014 The
chirectors expect that that the market conditions
expenenced in the second half of 2014 will be
similar going inte 2015 The directors therefore
have a reasonable expectation that the mine
will continue to achieve acceptable levels of
profitabiity in 2015 As a consequence, the
drrectors believe that the group 1s well placed
to manage its business nsks successfully

In Cctober 2013, an increase in the structured
trade finance facility from RB0milion (South Afncan
Rand) to RBOmillion was signed by Black Wattle
Colliery (Pty) Limited {“Black Wattle™ with Absa
Bank Limited, a South Afncan subsidiary of
Barclays Bank PLC The facility s renewed
annually at 30 June and 1s secured aganst
inventory, debtors and cash that are held n the

group’s South Afncan operations Thus facility
compnses of a R60mulion revohing loan to cover
the working capitat requirements of the group’s
South Afncan operations, and a R20millon loan
faciiity to cover guarantee requirernents related
to the group’s South Afncan mining operations
Dunng the year Black Wattle breached one of
the covenants of the facility related to the
accounting net asset value of the company
Due to the mproved performance of the company
the breach was subsequently rectified and the
breach did not affect the ongoing use of the
facility, or the ability to renew the facility agan
at the appropnate times

In December 2014, the group signed a £6
million term loan facility with Santander This
new loan replaces the previous £5 mdion term
facility and overdraft held with Royal Bark of
Scotland The Lean 1s secured against the
Company's UK retall property portfolio The
new debt package has a five year term and 1s
repayable at the end of the term The interest
cost of the loan 1s 2 35% above LIBOR

As a result of the completion of the above
agreed banking facihties as well as the acceptable
levels of profitability and cash generation the
mine 1s expected to continue to achieve In
2015, the Directors believe that the company
has adequate resources to continue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that
the company 1s well placed to manage its
business nsks Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in prepanng
the annual financial statements

By order of the board

G.J Casey
Secretary

24 Bruton Place
London W1J BNE
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Statement of the Chairman of
the remuneration committee

The remuneration committee
presents its report for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The Annual Remuneration Report details
remuneraton awarded to drvectors and
non-executive drrectors during the year The
shareholders will be asked to approve the
Annual Rernuneration Report as an ordinary
resolution (as i previous years) at the AGM
inJune 20156

A copy of the remuneration policy, which detals
the remuneration policy for directors, can be
found at www bistchi co uk The remuneration
policy was subject to a binding vote which was
approved by shareholders at the AGM in June
2014 The approval will apply for a 3 year penod
commencing 11 June 2014 The approved
policy took effect from 11 June 2014

The remuneration committee reviewed the
existing policy and deemed no changes
necessary to the current arrangements

Both of the above reports have been prepared
in accordance with The Large and Medium-
sized Companes and Groups (Accounts and
Reperts) (Amendment) Regulations 2013

The Company’s auditors, BDO LLP are required
by law to audit certain disclosures and where

E?@uﬁr&s have been audited they are ndicated
TC m

Chnstopher goll
Chairman — rémuneration committes

24 Bruton Place
Longon W1J 6NE

27 Apnl 2015
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Annual remuneration report

The following information has been audited

Single total figure of remuneraton for the year ended 31 December 2014

Notional
Total value
before of vesting
Salanes Share Share Total
and Fees Bonuses Benefits Pension aptions options 2014
Executive Directors
Sir Michael Heller 75 - - - 75 - 75
AR Heller 450 300 54 32 836 26 862
G J Casey 124 100 14 16 254 - 254
R Grobter 149 102 15 8 274 - 274
Non-Executive Directors
C A Joll* 25 - - - 25 - 25
J A Sibbald* 2 - 3 - 5 - 5
Total 825 502 a6 56 1,469 26 1,495
"Meambers of the remuneration commuttes for the year ended 31 December 2014
Single total figure of remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2013
Notional
Total value
before of vesting
Salares Share Share Total
and Fees Bonuses Benefits Pension options options 2013
Executive Directors
Sir Michael Heller 75 - - - 75 - 75
A R Heller 450 103 31 30 614 - 614
G J Casey 119 75 10 16 220 - 220
R Grobler 142 50 22 7 221 - 221
Non-Executive Directors
C A JolI* 25 - - - 25 - 25
J A Sibbald” 2 - 3 - 5 - 5
27 - 3 - 30 - 30
Total 813 228 66 53 1,160 - 1,160

“Members of the remuneration cormmittes for the year ended 31 Decamber 2013
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GOVERNANCE Annual remuneration report continued

Summary of directors’ terms Date of contract Unexpired term Notice peniod

Executive directors

Sir Michael Heller November 1972 Continuous 6 months
A R Heller January 1994 Continuous 3 months
G J Casey June 2010 Centinuous 3 months
R J Grobler April 2008 Continuous 3 menths
Non-executive directors

CA Joll February 2001 Continuous 3 menths
J A Sibbatd October 1988 Continuous 3 months

PENSION SCHEMES AND INCENTIVES
Three (2013 three) drectors have benefits under money purchase pension schemes Contnbutions in 2014 were £56,000 (2013 £63,000),
see table above

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE YEAR
No scheme options were awarded dunng the year ended 31 December 2014

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company currently has three “Unapproved” Share Option Schemes which are not subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) approval
The “2006 Scheme” was approved by shareholders on 29 June 2006, and the “2010 Scheme" was approved by shareholders on 7 June 2011
The *2012 Scheme” was approved by the remuneration committee of the Company on 28 September 2012 Existing optons over ordinary shares
granted under the First Scheme lapsed on 29 September 2012 Al avalable options under each of the Schermes have been granted

Number of share options

QOptions
Granted/ 31
Option 1 January (Exercised) in December Exercisable Exercisable
pnce” 2014 2014 2014 from to
The 2006 Scheme
AR Heller 237 5p 275,000 - 275,000 4/10/2009 3/10/2016
Employee 237 5p 50,000 - 50,000 4/10/2009 3/10/2016
The 2010 Scheme
G J Casey 202 5p 80,000 - 80,000 31/08/2013  30/08/2020C
The 2012 Scheme
AR Heller 34p 233,000 (40,000) 193,000 01/10/2012  30/09/2022
*Muddle market pnce at date of grant
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No consideration 1s payable for the grant of options under the Unépproved Share Option Schemes

Perforrnance conditions:

The exercise of ophons under the Unapproved Share Option Schemes, for certain option 1ssues, 1s subject to the satisfaction of objective
performance conditions spectfied by the remuneration committee, which will conform to institutional shareholder guidelines and best practice
provisrons in force from time to time  The performance conditions far the 2010 scheme, agreed by members on 31 August 2010, requires growth in
net assets over a three year penod 0 exceed the growth in the retail price Index by a scale of percentages There are no performance conditions
attached to the other schemes

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS
No payments were made to past directors in the year ended 31 December 2014

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
No payments for loss of office were made In the year ended 31 December 2014

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTEREST
Directors’ interests
The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company, including family and trustee holdings where appropnate, were as follows

Beneficial Non-beneficial
31122014 112014 3112 2014 112014

Sir Michael Heller 148,783 148,783 181,334 181,334
A R Heller 785,012 785,012 - -
C A Jall - - - -
J A Sibbald - . - .
R J Grobler - - - -
G J Casey 40,000 - - -
The following information 1s unaudited: 140 00%
The following graph llustrates the Company’s 120 00%
performance compared with a broad equity 100 00%
market index over a ten year penod 80 00%
Performance 1s measured by total shareholder 6C 00%
return The directors have chosen the FTSE All 40 00% Bisichi Minng
Share Mining Index as a sutable index for this 20 00%
comparison as it gives &n indication of 000% FTSE All Share Minng
performance against a spread of quoted 2000%
companies in the same sector -4000%

60 00%

8000%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The middle market price of Bisichi Mining PLG ordinary shares at 31 December 2014 was 80p (2013-109 75p) Dunng the year the share pnce
ranged between 78p and 125p

Bisichi Mining PLC




GOVERNANCE Annual remuneration report contnued

REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR OVER THE LAST TEN YEARS

The table below demonstrates the remuneration of the holder of the office of Managing Dwector for the last ten years for the period from 1 January
2005 to 31 December 2014

Managing Director Annual bonus payout Long-term incentive

Single total figure of against maximum vesting rates aganst

Managing remuneration opportunity” maximum opporturity*

Year Director £'000 % %
2014 AR Heller 836 22% N/A
2013 AR Heller 614 N/A N/A
2012 AR Heller 544 N/A N/A
2011 A R Heller 626 N/A N/A
2010 AR Heller 568 N/A N/A
2009 AR Heller 87 N/A N/A
2008 AR Heller 716 N/A N/A
2007 AR Heller 961 N/A N/A
2006 AR Heller 462 N/A N/A
2005 AR Heller 413 N/A N/A

Bisichi Mining PLC does not have a Chief Executive so the table includes the equivalent information for the Managing Director
*There were no formal cnteria or conditions 1o apply in determiring the amount of bonus payable or the number of shares (o be 1ssued prior to 2014

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR UNDERTAKING ROLE OF MANAGING DIRECTOR

Managing Director UK based employees
£'000 £'000
2014 2013 % change 2014 2013 % change
Base salary 450 450 0% 199 194 26%
Benefits 54 31 74 2% 14 10 400%
Bonuses 300 103 191 3% 100 75 33 3%

Bisichi Mining PLC does not have a Chief Executive se the table includes the equivalent information for the Managing Director
The comparator group chosen 1s all UK based employees as the remuneration committee beleve this provides the most accurate companson of
underlying iIncreases based on simdar annual bonus performances utiised by the group

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The total expenditure of the Group on remuneration to all employees (see Noies 28 and 32 to the financial statements) 1s shown below

2014 2013

£'000 £'000

Empioyee remuneration 5,057 5,850
Distribution to shareholders 427 425
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STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy was approved at the AGM in June 2014 The policy took effect from 11 June 2014 and will apply for 3 years unless
changes are deemed necessary by the Remuneration committee The Company may not make a remuneration payment or payment for loss of
office to a person who 1s, 1s to be, or has been a director of the Company unless that payment 1s consistent with the approved remuneration policy.
or has otherwise been approved by a resolution of members

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee considered the executive directors remuneration and the board considered the non-executive directors remuneration
In the year ended 31 December 2014 No increases were awarded and no external advice was taken in reaching thrs decision

SHAREHOLDER VOTING

At the Annual General Megting on 11 June 2014, there was an advisory vote on the resolution to approve the remuneration report, other than the
part contaning the remuneration policy In addition, there was a binding vote on the resolution to approve the remuneration policy the results of
which are detaled below

% of votes % oi votes  No of votes

for against withheld
Resolution to approve the Remuneration Report 98 73% 1 06% 4,693
Resolution to approve the Remuneration Palicy 98 75% 1 04% 5,405

SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive directors have full-time contracts of employment with the Company Non-executive directars have contracts of service No director has
a contract of employment or contract of service with the Company, its joint venture or associated companies with a fixed term which exceeds twelve
months Directors notice penods (see page 29 of the annual remuneration report) are set in line with market practice and of a fength considered
sufficient to ensure an effective handover of duties should a director leave the company

All drectors’ contracts as amended from time to time, have run from the date of appontment Service contracts are kept at the registered office
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REMUNERATICN POLICY TABLE
The remuneration policy table below 15 an extract of the Group's remuneration policy on direciors’ remuneration, which was approved by a binding
vote at the 2014 AGM The approved policy took effect from 11 June 2014 A copy of the full polcy can be found at www bisichi co uk

Oppaortunity and performance
Element Purpose Policy Operation conditions

Executive directors

Base To recognise Considered by remuneration Rewviewed annually There 15 no presenbed maximum
salary Skills committee on appointment Paid monthly in cash salary or maximum rate of increase
Responsitility Set at a level considered No specific performance conditions
Accountability appropnate te attract, retan are attached to base salanes
Expenence motvate and reward the
Value nght Individuals
Pension To provide compehtive Company contnbution offered  The ¢ontribution payable by Company contribution offered at up to
retirement benefits at up to 10% of base salary the Company ts included 10% of base salary as part of overall
as part of overall remuneration i the director's contract of remuneration package
package empleyment No specific performance conditions
Paid into money purchase are attached to pension coninbutions
schemes
Benefits To provide a competitive  Gontractual benefits can The committee retans the The costs associated with benefits
benefits package include but are not imited to discretion to approve changes offered are closely controlled and
Car or car allowance in contractual benefits In reviewed on an annual basis
Group health cover exceptional crcumstances No specific performance conditions
Death In service cover or where factars outside the  grg attached to contraciual benefits

control of the Group lead to
Permanent health nsurance 2~ 4 coste (eg medical  The value of benefits for each drrector

for the year ended 31 December 2014
inflation) 15 shown in the table on page 28

Annual Toreward and incentmse  In assessing the performance  The remuneration committee  The current maximum bonus
Bonus of the executve team, and determines the level of bonus  opportunity will not exceed 200% of
In particular to determine on an annual basis applying base salary in any one year, but the

whether bonuses are merted  such performance condiions  remuneration commuttee reserves the

the remuneration committee and performance measures power to award up to 300% in an

takes into account the overall  as it considers appropnate exceptional year

performance of the business Performance conditions will be

Bonuses are generally offerad assessed on an annual basis The

n cash performance measures apphed may
be financial, non-fnancial, corporate,
divisional or indwidual and in such
proporton as the remuneration
commitiee considers appropnate

Share Te provide executive Granted under existing Offered at appropnate tmes by Entitlement to share options 1s not
Options directors with a schemes (see page 29) the remuneration committee  subject to any performance conditions
long-term interest Share options will be offered by the
in the company rermuneration committee as appropnate
There are nc maximum levels for share
ophions offered
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REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE continued

Element Purpose

Policy

Cperation

Cpportunity and performance
conditions

Non-executive directors

Base To recognise Considered by the board on Reviewed annually There 1s no prescrnbed maximum
salary Skills appointment salary or maximum rate of ncrease
Experence Set at a level considered No specific perfformance conditions
Value appropnate to attract, retain are attached to base salanes
and motwate the individual
Experience and time required
for the role are considered on
appontment
Pension No pension cffered
Benefits No benefits offered except to The costs associated with the benefit
one non-executive director offered 15 closety centrolled and
who is eligible for health cover reviewed on an annual basis
(see annual remuneration No specific performance condiions
report page 28) are attached to contractual benefits
Share Non-executive directors do not
Options participate n the share option

schemes

The remuneration committee consider the performance measures outined In the table above to be appropnate measures of performance and that
the KPI's chosen align the interests of the directors and shareholders
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GOVERNANCE

Audit committee report

The commitiee’s terms of reference have been
approved by the board and follow published
guidelines, which are avallable from the
company secretary The audit committee
comprises the two non-executive directors,
Chnstopher Joll {charman), an expenenced
financial PR executive and John Sibbald, a
retired chartered accountant

The Audit Committee's prime tasks are to

Review the scope of external audit, to receive
regular reports from the auditor and to review
the half-yearty and annual accounts before they
are presented to the board, focusing in
particular on accounting policies and areas of
management judgment and estimation,

Morutor the controls which are in force to
ensure the integnty of the mformaton reported
tc the shareholders,

Assess key nsks and to act as a forum for
discussion of nsk 1ssues and contrnbute to
the board's review of the effectiveness of the
group's nsk management controi and
processes,

Act as a forum for discussion of internal contrel
1ssues and contnbute to the board's review of

the effectiveness of the group's internal control
and nsk management systems and processes,

Constder each year the need for an internal
audit function,

Adwise the board on the appontment of
external auditors and rotation of the audit
partner every five years, and on ther
remuneration for both audit and non-audit
work, and discuss the nature and scope of
ther aucht work,

Partictpate in the selection of a new external
audit partner and agree the appointment
when required,

Undertake a2 formal assessment of the auditors’
independence each yaar which ncludes

» areview of non-audit services provided to
the group and related fees,

discussion with the auditors of a wntten
report detating all relationships with the
company and any other partes that could
affect ndependence or the perception of
independence,

¢ areview of the auditors’ own procedures for
ensunng the independence of the audit firm
and partners and staff nvolved i the audit,
including the regular rotation of the audit
partner, and

obtaining written confirmation from the
auditors that, in therr professional jJudgement,
they are independent

MEETINGS

The committea meets pnor to the annual audit
with the external auditars to discuss the audt
pfan and again prior to the publication of the
annual results These meetings are attended by
the external audit partner, managing drector,
director of finance and company secretary
Pnor to i-monthly board meetings the
members of the committee meet on an
informal basis to discuss any relevant matters
which may have ansen Additional formal
meetings are held as necessary

Dunng the past year the committee

« met with the external auditers, and discussed
therr report to the Audit Committee,

+ approved the publcation of annual and
half-year financial results,

* considered and approved the annual review
of internal controls,

« decided that due to the size and nature of
operation there was not a current need for
an internal audit function,

« agreed the independence of the auditors
and approved therr fees for both audit and
not-audit services as set out n note 4 to the
financial statements

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
BDO LLP held office throughout the year In the
United Kingdom the company 1s provded with
extensive administration and accounting
services by London & Associated Properties
PLC which has its own audit committee and
employs a separate firm of external auditors,
Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP In South Afnca Grant
Thornton (Jhby) Inc acts as the external auvditor
to the South Afn¢an companies, and the work
hat firm was reviewed by BDO LLP for the
L\u of the audit

Christopher Joll

Chairrnan — audit committee

24 Bruton Place
London W1J 6NE
27 Apnl 2015
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Valuers’ certificates

TO THE DIRECTORS OF BISICHI MINING PLC
In accardance with your instructions we have carmed out a valuation of the freehold property interests held as at 31 December 2014 by the company
as detaled in our Valuation Report dated 25 February 2015

Hawving regard 10 the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the open market value as at 31 Decemnber 2014 of the interests owned by the Company
was £11,575,000 being made up as follows

£000
Freehold 8,925
Leasehold 2,650
11,675
Leeds Carter Towler
25 February 2015 Regulated by Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Bisichi Mining PLC

We have audited the financial siatements

of Bisichi Mining PLC for the year ended

31 December 2014 which compnse the
consclidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
ncome, the consolidated balance sheet,

the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, the consolidated cash
flow staterment, the parent company balance
sheet and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the group financial statements
15 applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union The financial reporiing
framework that has been applied m preparation
of the parent company financial statements 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's
members, as a body, n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Cur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s
memibers as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explaned more fully in the statement of
directors’ responsibilities, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financizl
statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and farr vew Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opirion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Financial Reporting Council's
(FRC's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

38 Bisichi Mining PLC

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A descnption of the soope of an audit of financial
statements i1s prowided on the FRC's website at
www fre org uk/audiscopeukpnvate

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our cpinkoen

¢ the financial statements give a true and far
view of the state of the group's and the
parent company’s affars as at 31 December
2014 and of the group’s profit for the year
then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Urion,

* the parent company financial statements
have been property prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMFANIES
ACT 2006

I our opinion

+ the part of the directors' remuneration report
to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
and

the information given in the strategic report
and directors' report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared
1 consistent wath the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTICN

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you If, In our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneraticn
report 1o be audited are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

we have not received all the infermation and
explanations we require for our audit

Roo (

Andrew Huddleston

(sentor statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of BDQ LLF,
statutory auditor

London, United Kingdem
27 Apnl 2015

BDO LLP 1s a imited hability partnership
registered in England and Wales
{with registered number OC305127)




GOVERNANCE

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The drrectors are responsible for preparning the
annual report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors are required to
prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with Internatonal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and have elected to prepare
the company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Urited
Kingdom Accounting Standards and appicable
law) Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and far view of
the state of affars of the group and company
and of the profit or loss for the group for that
penod

In prepanng these financial statements, the
drectors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reascnable and prudent,

state with regard to the group financral
statements whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements,

state with regard to the parent company
financtal statements, whether applicable UK
accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any matenat deparntures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements,

+ prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate
¢ presume that the company and the group
wilt continue N business,

s prepare a strategic report, director's report
and director’s remuneration report which
comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

The drectors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explan the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2008 and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulatton They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
wregutanties

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The directors are responsible for ensunng the
annual repert and the financial statements are
made avalzable on a website Financial
statements are published cn the company’s
website N accordance with legistaticn in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements, wihich
may vary from legislaticn in other junsdicticns
The mantenance and integnty of the
company’s website 1s the responsibility of the
directors The directors’ responsibility also
extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial
statements contaned therain

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
PURSUANT TO DTR4

The directors confirm to the best of therr
knowledge

« the group financial statements have been
prepared In accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Article
4 of the JAS Regulation and give a true and
farr view of the assets, llabiities, financial
position and praofit and loss of the group

« the annual report Includes a farr review of the
development and performance of the
business and the financial position of the
group and the parent company, together
with a descnption or the principal nsks and
uncertainties that they face
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Trading Revaluations Total Trading Revaluations Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group revenue 1 26,500 - 26,500 35,1056 - 35,105
Operating costs 2 (22,224) - (22,224) (31,271) - (31,271)
Operating profit before depreciation, 4,276 - 4,276 3,834 - 3,834
far value adjustments and exchange
movements
Depreciation 2 {2,682) . (2,682) (2,817 - (2.817}
Cperating profit before far valua 1 1,594 - 1,594 1,017 - 1,017
adjustments and exchange movements
Exchange losses (143) - (143) (880} - {880)
Decrease in value of nvestmant properties 3 - (6} (6) - (53) {53)
Increases{Decrease) In value of other - 1 1 - (1) m
nvestmeants
{Reversal of gans)\ Gains on held for - {82) {82) - 40 40
trading investments
Operating profit/{loss) 1 1,451 (87) 1,364 137 {14} 123
Share of profit in joint ventures 13 65 498 563 - a9 99
Profit before interest and taxation 1,516 411 1,927 137 85 222
Interest recevable 234 - 234 235 - 326
Interest payable 6 (593) - (593) (446} - (446)
Profit before tax 4 1,157 411 1,568 17 85 102
Taxation 7 {348) {17) (365) 98 164 262
Profit for the year 809 394 1,203 115 249 364
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the company 709 394 1,103 106 249 355
Non-controling interest 26 100 - 100 9 - 9
Profit for the year 809 394 1,203 115 249 364
Profit per share - basic 9 6 64p ., 369p 10.33p 100p 235p 3 35p
Profit per share - diluted 9 657p 3 65p 10 23p 099p 231p 330p

Trading income reflects all the trading actmty on minng and property operatons Revaluahon Income reflects the revaluation of nvestment properties
and other assets within the group and any proportion of these amounts within Joint Ventures The total column represenis the consolidated income
staternent presented n accordance with 1AS 1
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Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2014 2014 2013
£'000 £'000

Profit for the year 1,203 364

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be subsequently recycled to the Income statement

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (121) {B858)

Transfer of gan on avalable for sale Investments 56 -

Taxaton {15) -

Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax {80) {858}

Total comprehensive income for the year net of tax 1,123 (494}

Attnbutable to:

Equity shareholders 1,036 {409}

Non-controling interest 87 (85}
1,123 (494)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet

at 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Notes £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Value of investment properties 10 11,575 11,559
Fair value of head lease 30 195 196
Investment properties 11,770 11,755
Mining reserves, plant and equipment 11 6,064 7.086
Investments in joint ventures accounted for using equity method 12 2,898 3,235
Loan to joint venture 12 1,040 984
Other investments 12 152 151
Total non-current assets 21,924 23,221
Current assets
Inventones 15 1,760 1,756
Trade and other receivables 16 6,860 8,659
Corporation tax recoverable 35 36
Avallable for sale investments 17 796 822
Cash and cash eguivalents 2,838 1,707
Total current assets 12,289 12,980
Total assets 34,213 36,201
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consohdated balance sheet continued

2014 2013
Notes £'000 £'000
Liabilities
Current habilities
Borrowings 19 {2,139) (8.042)
Trade and other payables 18 {4,986) (8,080)
Current tax habilhes (23) 2)
Total current habilthes {7,148} (16,124)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 19 {6,013} (118)
Provision for rehatilitation 20 (930) (874}
Finance lease liabilities 30 (195) (196}
Deferred tax labilities 22 {2,208) (1,902)
Total nen-current liabilities {9,346) (3,090}
Total habiities {16,494) (19,214)
Net assets 17,719 16,987
Equity
Share capital 23 1,068 1,064
Share premium account 258 249
Translation reserve (1,677) {1,569}
Availlable for sale reserve 41 -
Qther reserves 24 652 587
Retained earmings 16,973 16,297
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders 17,315 16,628
Non-controling interest 26 404 359
Total equity 17,719 16,887

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors on 27 Apnl 2015 and signed on its behalf by

A R Heller G J Casey Company Registration No. 112155
Director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity

for the year ended 31 December 2014

Available- Non-

Share Share Translation for-sale Other Retained controlling Total

caprtal Premium reserves reserves reserves earmngs Total interest  equsty

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2013 1,058 1689 (805) - 528 16,367 17.315 444 17,759
Revaluation of investment properties - - - - - (53} (53} - {53)
Other Income statement movements - - - - - 408 408 9 417
Profit for the year - - - - - 355 355 9 364
Other comprehensive Income - - (764) - - - (764) (94) {858}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {764) - - 355 {409) (85) {494)
Dmdend (note 8) - - - . - (425) 425) . (425)
Share issues 8 80 - - - - 88 - 88
Equity share options - - - - 59 - 59 - 59
Balance at 1 January 2014 1,064 249 (1,569) - 587 16,297 16,628 358 16,987
Revaluation of investment properties - - - - - ®) {6} - (6)
Other income statement movements - - - - - 1,109 1,109 100 1,209
Profit for the year - - - - - 1,103 1,103 100 1,203
Other comprehensive income - - (108) 41 - - 67} (13) (80}
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - (108) 41 - 1,103 1,036 87 1,123
Dividend (note 8) - - - - - 427} (427) {42) {469)
Share 1s5ues 4 9 . - - - 13 - 13
Equity share options - - - - 65 - 65 - 65
Balance at 31 December 2014 1,068 258 {1,677) 41 652 16,973 17,315 404 17,719
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2014

Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£'000 £°000

Cash flows from operating activihes
Operating profit 1,364 123
Adjustments for

Depreciation 2,682 2,817

Share based payment expense 65 120

Loss/{Gam) on investment held for trading 82 (40)

Unrealised loss on investment properties 6 53

Unrealised (gain)/loss on other investments (1} 1

Share of profit of joint venture - -
Cash flow before working capital 4,198 3,074
Change m inventories (4) 120
Change In trade and cther receivables 2,438 (2,320}
Change in trade and cther payables (2,940} 433
Change in provisions - 15
Cash generated from operations 3,692 1,322
Interest receved 234 326
interest paid (506} (357)
Income tax receved {14} L
Cash flow from operating activities 3,406 1,302
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of reserves, plant and equipment (1,903} {3.060)
Disposal/{acquisitions) of investments - (102)
Cash flow from investing activities (1,803) (3,162)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity continued

Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December
214 2013
£000 £000
Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings drawn 5,902 39
Borrowings repaid {5,000} {98}
Equity dividends paid (a27) (425)
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 13 27
Cash flow from financing activities 488 {455)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,991 (2,315)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January {1,322) 718
Exchange adjustment 50 275
Cash and cash equvalents at 31 December 719 {1,322)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December compnse
Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance shest 2,838 1,707
Bank overdrafts (secured) {2,119) (3,029}
719 (1,322)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group accounting policies

for the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The results for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companes reporting under IFRS The prneipal
accounting policies are descnbed below

The group financial statements are presented
In £ sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when
otherwise stated

GOING CONCERN

The group has considerable financial resources
avalable at short notce ncluding cash, held for
trading nvestments and its £2m loan to Dragon
Retal Properties Limited which 1s repayable on
demand In addtion its investment property
assets benefit from long term leases with the
magjonty of its tenants Black Wattle Collery, its
direct mining asset, expenenced an Improvement
n profitabdty and cashflow in the second half of
2014 The drrectors expect that that the market
conditions expenenced In the second hatf of
2014 will be similar going nto 2018 The directors
therefore have a reasonable expectation that the
mine will continue 10 achieve acceptable levels of
profitability n 2015 As a consequence, the
directors bebeve that the group 1s well placed to
manage its business nsks successfully

In October 2013, an increase in the structured
trade finance faciity from R60milkon {South
Afncan Rand) to R80millon was signed by Black
Wattle Colliery (Pty) Limited ("Black Wattle") with
Absa Bank Limnited, a South Afncan subsidiary of
Barclays Bank PLC The facility 1s renewed
annually at 30 June and ts secured against
inventory, debtors and cash that are held in the
group’s South Afncan operations

This faciity compnses of a R80Omilion revoving
loan to cover the working capual requirements of
the group's South Afncan operations, and a
R20mullion koan facity to cover guarantee
requirements related to the group’s South Afncan

mining operations  Dunng the year Black Wattle
breached one of the covenants of the faciity
refated to the accounting net asset value of the
company Due to the improved performance of
the company the breach was subsequentty
rectified and the breach did not affect the
ongaing use of the facility, or the ability to
renew the facility agan at the appropnate
tmes

In December 2014, the group signed a £6
millkon term doan facility with Santander This
new loan replaces the previous £5 million term
facity and overdraft held with Royal Bank of
Scotland The Loan s secured aganst the
Company's UK retall property portfolo The
new debt package has a five year term and 1s
rapayable at the end of the term The interest
cost of the loan 1s 2 35% above LIBOR At
year-end an amount of £472 500 was held in a
blocked account by Santander UK PLC that
relates to the new £6million foan facility The
funds have been blocked in order to satisfy the
bank that certan condions relating 10 the
faciity will be fulfilled Subsequent to year end
these conditions have been fulfiled and
Santander UK PLC have confirmed that these
funds will be released in the near future

As aresult of the completion of the above agreed
banking faciies, the Dwrectors believe that the
company has adequate resources to continue In
operationa) exstence for the foresesable future
and that the company I1s well placed to manage
its business nsks Thus they continue to acopt
the gong concern basis of accounting N
prepanng the annual financial statements

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ([FRS}

The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and Interpretations in
force at the reporting date These are prepared
under the histone cost basis as modfied by the
revaluation of investment properties and held
for trading investments

Dunng 2014 the following accounting standards
and gudance were adopted by the group

« amendments to IAS 32 - Financial
instruments presentation - offsetting
financial assets and financ:al iabilities

= amendments to [AS 39 - Novation of
Dernvatves and Continuation of Hedge

* |[FAS 10 - 12 and IAS 27 — Investment
entities and Jont Arrangements

s |FRIC 21 - Levies

The accounting treatment detaled in the above
standards have not resulted in a change of the
Group's accounting policy and had no matenal
impact on the group’s financial positon, group
structure or performance

All other standards and interpretations that
were mandatory for the accounting penod and
were required to be adopted by the group
either had no matenal impact on the group’s
financial statements or were not relevant to the
operations of the group

The group has not adopted any standards or
nterpretations in advance of the required
mplementation dates The following new or
revised standards that are applicable to the
group were 1ssued but not yet effective

* IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

* IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

+« amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
— Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

1t1s not expected that adoption of any
standards or interpretations which have been
issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board but have not been adopted
will have a matenal impact on the financial
statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Group accounting policies continued

KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The directors consider therr jJudgements and
estimates surrounding the life of the mine and
its reserves to have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised In the financial
statements and o be the area where the
financial staterments are at most nsk of a matenal
adjustment due to estimation uncertanty Areas
where key estimates and judgements are
considered to have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised n the financial statements
nclude

Depreciation, amortisation of mineral
nghts, nuning development costs and
plant & equipment

The annual depreciation/amortisaton charge to
operations, can fluctuate from nitial estmates
This could generally result when there are
significant changes in any of the factors or
assumptions used in estimating mineral reserves
and resources which in turn affects the life of
mine or the expected life of reserves Estimates
of proven and probable reserves and resources
are prepared by sutable qualfied experts
Assessments of depreciatron/amortisation
rates against the estimated reserve and
resource base are performed regularty

Provision for mining rehabilitation including
restoration and de-commissioning costs

A provision for future rehabilitation including
restoration and decommissioning costs
requires estimates and assurmptions to be
made around the relevant regulatory framework,
the timing, extent and costs of the rehabilitation
activibes and of the nsk adjusted discount rates
used to detenmine the present value of the future
cash outflows The provisions Including the
estmates and assumphons contaned theren
are reviewed regularty by management

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impainment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying vatue
may not be fully recoverable Future cash flow
estimates are discounted using asset specific
discount rates and are based on expectations
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about future operations, pnmarly compnsing
estimates about production and sales volumes,
commodity prices, reserves and resources,
operating, rehabilitatton and restoration costs
and capital expenditures Changes 1n such
estimates could impact recoverable values of
these assets Estimates are revewed regularly
by management

Fair value measurements of investment
properties

An assessment of the farr value of assets and
labiities, in particular mvestment properties, s
required to be performed In such instances,
farr value measurements are esttmated based
on the amounts for which the assets and tabilites
could be exchanged at the relevant transaction
date or reporting penod end To the extent
possible, the assumptions and inputs used
take into account externally venifiable inputs
However, such mformation 1s by nature subject
to uncertainty The directors note that the far
value measurerment of the Investment propertes,
can be considered to be less judgemental
where external valuers have been used and as
a result of the nature of the underlying assets

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The group accounts incorporate the accounts
of Bisichi Mining PLC and &l of its subsidiary
undertakings, together with the group's share
of the results of its joint ventures  Non-controling
Interests in subsidianes are presented separately
from the equity attnbutable to equity owners of
the parent company When changes in
ownership in a subsidary do not result in a loss of
control, the non-controling shareholders’ interests
are inhially measured at the non-controling
Interests’ proportionate share of the subsidianes
net assets Subsequent to this, the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests 1s the amount
of those interests at Inital recognition plus the
non-contreling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity Total comprehensive Incomea
15 attnbuted to non-controling interests even If
this results n the non-controling interests
having a defict balance

The definition of control according to IFRS 10
was appled during the year “Control” assumes
the simuttaneous fulfiiment of the following
three cntena

* The parent company holds decision-making
power over the relevant activities of the
nvestee,

+ The parent company has nghts to vanable
returns from the investes, and

* The parent company can use Its decision-
making power to affect the vanable returns

Investees are analysed for ther relevant activities
and vanable returns, and the knk between the
varniable returns and the extent to which ther
relevant actmties could be influenced in order
to ensure the definition i1s correctly applied

REVENUE

Revenue compnses sales of coal and property
rental ncome Revenue is recognised when
delivery of the product or service has been
made and when the customer has a legally
binding obligation to settle under the terms of
the contract and has assumed all significant
nsks and rewards of ownership

Revenue 1s only recognised on indvidual sales
of coal when all of the significant nsks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred
to a third party in most instances revenue 15
recognised when the product 1s delivered to
the location specified by the customer, which
15 typically when loaded into transport, where
the customer pays the transportation costs

Rental ncome which excludes services charges
recoverable from tenants, 1s recognised in the
group income statement on a straght-tine
basis over the term of the lease This includes
the effect of lease incentives



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Group accounting policies continued

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties compnse freehold and
long leasehold land and buildings Investment
properties are camed at far value in accordance
with 1AS 40 ‘Investment Propertes' Properties
are recognised as Investment properties when
held for long-term rental yields, and after
consideration has been given to a number of
factors including length of lease, quality of
tenant and covenant, value of lease, management
intention for future use of property, planning
consents and percentage of property leased
Investment properties are revalued annually by
professional external surveyors and included in
the balance sheet at therr far value Gains or
losses ansing from changes in the far values of
assets are recognised in the consclidated
income statement in the penod to which they
relate In accordance with LAS 40, investment
properties are not depreciated  Properties held
for use in the business are not recogrused as
Investment properties and are held at depreciated
histoncal cost

The far value of the head leases s the net
present value of the current head rent payable on
leasehold properties until the expiry of the lease

MINING RESERVES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The cost of property, plant and equipment
compnses its purchase price and any costs
directly attnbutable to bninging the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in accordance with
agreed specifications Freshold land 1s not
depreciated Other property, plant and
equipment 15 stated at historica! cost less
accumulated depreciation

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the group has
a present oblgation as a result of a past event
whuch it 1s probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated

A prowsion for rehabiliiation of the mine 1s
carried at present value and 15 provided for
over the Ife of mine The prowision includes the
restoration of the underground, opencast,
surface operations and de-commissioning of
plant and equipment and 1s estimated to be
utiised at the end of the life of mine of the
group The timing and final cost of the
rehabilitation 1s uncentain and will depend on
the duration of the mine life and the quantities
of coal extracted from the reserves

MINE RESERVES AND DEVELOPMENT
COST

The purpose at mine development i1s to
establish secure working conditions and
infrastructure to alow the safe and efficient
extraction of recoverable reserves
Depreciation on mine development 15 not
charged unbl production commences or the
assets are put to use On commencement of
full producticn, depreciation 1s charged over
the life of the associated mine reserves on a
unit of production basis

SURFACE MINE DEVELOPMENT
Expenditure incurred prior to the
commencement of working surface mine sites,
net of any residual value and taking into
account the likelihood of the site being mined,
15 capitahised within property, plant and
equipment and charged to the income
statement over the life of the recoverable
reserves of the scheme

OTHER ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
The cost, less estmated residual value, of
other property, plant and equipment 1s wriiten
off on a straight-line basis over the asset’s
expected useful ife Residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropaate,
at each balance sheet date Changes to the
estimated residfual values or useful lives are
accounted for prospectively Heavy surface
miring and other plant and equipment 1s
depreciated at varying rates depending upon
its expected usage

The depreciation rates generally applied are

The shorter of its useful
Iife or the hfe of the mine

Mining equipment

Mitning reserves Over the expected life
of the reserves using the

units of production basis

Motor vehicles 25 - 33 per cent per
annum

Office equpment 10 - 33 per cent per
annum

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Share based remuneration

The company operates a share option
scheme The far value of the share option
scheme I1s determined at the date of grant This
farr value 1s then expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting perod, based on an
estmate of the number of shares that will
eventualty vest The fair value of options
granted s calculated using a binomial or
Black-Scholes-Merton model Detalls of the
share options in issue are disclosed in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 29
under the heading Share option schemes
which 1s wathun the audited part of that report

Pensions

The group operates a defined contnbution
pension scheme The contnbutions payable 10
the scheme are expensed In the penod to
which they relate
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at year end exchange rates and the resulting
exchange rate differences are included In the
consolidated income statement withun the
results of operating activities if ansing from
trading activities and within finance cosV
income If ansing from financing

For consolidation purposes, income and
expense items are Included in the consolidated
Income statement at average rates, and assets
and habiltes are translated at year end
exchange rates Translation differences ansing
on consohdation are recogrused in other
comprehensive income Where foreign
operations are disposed of, the cumulative
exchange differences of that foreign operation
are recognised in the consolidated income
staternent when the gain or loss on disposal s
recogrised

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rate ruling on
transaction date

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The group classifies financial Instruments, or
ther component parts, on Inkial recognition as
a financial asset, a financial labiity or an equity
instrument in accerdance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement

Bank loans and overdrafts

Bank loans and overdrafts are included as
financial habilties on the group balance sheet
at the amounts drawn on the particular facilties
net of the unamortised cost of financing
Interest payable on those facilities 1s expensed
as finance cost In the penod to which it relates

Finance lease habilites

Finance lease labilites anse for those
investment properties held under a leasehold
nterest and accounted for as investment
property The liability 1s inibialty calculated as the
present value of the minimum lease payments,
reducing in subsequent reporting penods by
the apportionment of payments to the lessor
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Interest rate denvatives

The group uses denvative financial iInstruments
to manage the interast rate nsk associated with
the financing of the group's business No trading
in such financial nstruments 1s undertaken At
each reporting date, these interest rate
denvatives are recognised at {air value, being
the estimated amount that the group would
recewve or pay to terminate the agreement at
the balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current credit
rating of the counterparties The gain or loss at
each far value re-measurement 1s recogrised
mmediately in the Income statement

Available for sale mvestments

Financial asseis/iabiities avalable for sale or
held for short-term gain are measured at far
value and movements in far value are charged/
credited to the statement of comprehensve
income In the pericd

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and
are stated at therr nominal value as reduced by
appropriate atiowances for estimated recoverable
amounts as the interest that would be recogrused
from discounting future cash payments over
the short payment penod 1s not considered to
be matenal

Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest bearnng and
are stated at theirr nominal value, as the interest
that would be recognised from discounting
future cash payments over the short payment
penod I1s not considered to be matenal

Other financial assets and habilties

The groups other financial assets and labilittes
not disclosed above are accounted for at
amorhised cost

JOINT VENTURES

Investments in joint ventures, being those entites
over whose activities the group has jeint control,
as established by contractual agreement, are
Included at cost together with the group’s share
of post-acquisition reserves, on an equity basis
Jont control 15 the contractually agreed shanng
of control over an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about relevant strategic
and/or key operating decisions equire unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control Control
over the arrangement Is assessed by the group
In accordance with the definibicn of control
under IFRS 10

INVENTORIES

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and
net realsable value Cost iIncludes matenals,
direct iabour and overheads relevant to the
stage of production Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prce iess all further
costs to completicn and all relevant marketing,
selling and distributien costs

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Other investments that do not have a quoted
market price In an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised at cost less any prowvision for
impairment
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IMPAIRMENT

Whenever events or changes in circumstance
indicate that the carryng amount of an asset
may not be recoverable an asset ts reviewed
for mparment A review Involves detemining
whether the carmying amounts are in excess of
therr recoverable amounts An asset’s
recoverable amount is determined as the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and tts value N use  Such reviews are undertaken
on an assel-by-asset basis, except where
assets do not generate cash flows independent
of other assets, in which case the review Is
undertaken on a company or group level

If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount An asset’s carrying value
15 written down to its estimated recoverable
amount (being the higher of the farr value less
cost to sell and value in use} If that s less than
the asset's camying amount Any change in
carmang value 1S recognised in the
comprehensive Income statement

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable
or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labiities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the tax computations, and 1S
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
methed Deferred tax liabiities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will
be avalable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utiised In respect of the
deferred tax on the revaluation surplus, this

1s calculated on the basis of the chargeable
gains that would crystalise on the sale of the
investment portfolio as at the reporting date
The caleulaton takes account of Indexation

on the histoncal cost of the properties and

any avalable capial losses

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply In the penod when the
labilty 1s settled or the asset s realised Deferred
tax 1s charged or credited in the grcup Income
statement, except when it relates 1o items
charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive Income, N which case it is also
dealt with in other comprehensive Income

DIVIDENDS

Dmdends payable on the ordinary share capital
are recognised as a lability in the penod in
which they are approved

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash in hand and on-demand
deposts Cash and cash equivalents compnses
short-term, highly lquid investments that are
readlly convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of
changes in value and onginal maturties of
three months or less The cash and cash
equivalents shown in the cashflow statement
are stated net of bank overdrafts

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

For management reporting purposes, the
group I1s erganised Into business segments
distinguishable by economic activity The
group’s only business segments are mning
activities and investment properties These
business segments are subject to nsks and
returns that are different from those of other
business segments and are the pnmary basis
on which the group reports Its segment
information This 1s consistent with the way the
group 1s managed and with the format of the
group's internal financial reporting  Significant
revenue from transactions with any indmdual
customer, which makes up 10 percent or more
of the total revenue of the group, 1s separately
disclosed within each segment
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2014

1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

2014
Mining Property Qther Total
Business analysis £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Significant revenue customer A 12,607 - - 12,607
Significant revenue customer B 6,455 - - 6,445
Significant revenue customer C 1,793 - - 1,793
Qther revenue 4,681 931 33 5,645
Segment revenue 25,536 931 33 26,500
Cperating profit before farr value adustments & exchange movements 864 68399 3 1,594
Revaluation of investments & exchange movements (143) 6) 81) (230)
Operating profit/(loss) and segment result 4| 693 {50) 1,364
Segment assets 12,058 12,546 2,797 27,401
Unallocated assets
- Non-current assets 36
- Cash & cash equivalents 2,838
Total assets excluding investment in joint ventures 30,275
Segment abilites (6,698} {1,301) (14) {8,013)
Borrowings (60) {5.973) - {6,033)
{6.758) (7.274) (4 (14,046)
Unallocated liabilities (2,448)
Total habilities (16,494)
Net assets 13,781
Investment in joint ventures non segmenial 3,038
Net assets as per balance sheet 17,719
United South
Kingdom Africa Cther  Unallocated Total
Geographic analysis £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 964 25,536 - . 26,500
Operating profit/(loss) and segment result 643 721 - 1,364
Non-current assets excluding investments 11,780 8,030 - 24 17,834
Total net assets 6,051 5,296 17 6,355 17,719
Capital expenditure 26 1,877 - - 1,803
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Notes to the financial statements continued

1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING continued

2013

Mining Property Other Total

Business analysis £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Significant revenue customer A 12,981 - - 12,981
Significant revenue customer B 7,448 - 7,448
Significant revenue customer C 6,829 - - 6,829
Other revenue 6,859 953 35 7,847
Segment revenue 34117 953 35 35,105
Operating profit before farr value adjustments & exchange movements 335 649 33 1,017
Revaluation of nvestments & exchange movements (880} (53} 39 (894)
Operating profit/(ioss) and segment result {545) 596 72 123
Segment assets 15,849 11,667 2,823 30,229

Unallocated assets

- Non-current assets 46

- Cash & cash equivalents 1,707
Total assets excluding investment in Jjoint ventures 31,982
Segment labilibes (8,818) {1,010) (22} (9,848)
Borrowings (33) {5,098} - (5,131)
(8,849) {6,108} (22) {14,979)
Unallocated labilities (4,235)
Total habibties (19,214)
Net assets 12,768
Investment in joint ventures non segmental 4,219
Net assets as per balance sheot 16,987

United South

Kingdom Africa Other  Unallocated Total

Geographic analysis £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 988 34,117 - - 35,106
Operating profit and segment result 668 (545) - - 123
Non-current assets excluding investments 11,765 7,050 - 36 18,851
Total net assets 5,969 7,248 43 3,726 16,986
Capital expenditure 48 3,012 - - 3,060
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2. OPERATING COSTS

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Mining 18,244 26,158
Property a7 192
Cost of sales 18,341 26,350
Administration 6,565 7,738
Operating costs 24,906 34,088
The direct property costs are
Ground rent 8 5
Direct property expense 55 116
Bad debts 34 71
97 192
Operating costs above include depreciation of £2,682,000 {2013 £2,817,000)
3.LOSS ON REVALUATION AND SALE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The reconclliation of the investment deficit to the loss on revaluation of investment properties N the Income staternent 1s set out below
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Investment deficit (5) {47)
Loss on valuation movement in respect of head lease payments 1) 6)
Loss on revaluation of investrment properties (6) (563)
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4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation 1s amved at after charging

2014 2013
£000 £'000
Staff costs (see note 28) 5,057 5,850
Depreciation 2,682 2,817
Exchange loss 143 880
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounis 48 35
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services
The audtt of the company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 3 3
Other services 1

The drectors consider the auditors were best placed to provide the above non-audit services
The audit committee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit services to ensure that independence 1s mantaned

5 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments are shown in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 28 and 28 under the heading Directors’ remuneration which 1s

within the audited part of that report

& INTEREST PAYABLE

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
On bank overdrafis and bank loans 487 323
Unwinding of discount 87 89
Cther interest payable 19 34
Interest payable 593 446
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7 TAXATION
2014 2013
£°000 £'000
(a) Based on the results for the year
Corporation tax 16 -
Corporation tax — adjustment in respect of prior year - UK 20
Current tax 36 -
Deferred tax — current year 305 (213)
Deferred tax - adiustment in respect of prior year 24 {49
Total tax in income staternent 365 (262)

(b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The corporation tax assessed for the year 1s different from that at the standard rate of corporation 1ax in the United Kingdom of 23% {2013 249%;)

The difierences are explaned below

Profit on ordinary actmvities befare taxation 1,568 102
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at 21 5% (2013 23 5%} 337 24
Effects of

Expenses not deductble for tax purposes 45 6
Adjustment to tax rate (2} {101)
Other differences (59} {142)
Adjustment In respect of prior years 4 {49)
Total tax 365 (262)
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7 TAXATION continued
{¢) Analysts of United Kingdom and overseas tax

United Kingdom tax included in above

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Corporation tax - .
Adjustment in respect of pnor years 20 -
Current tax 20 -
Deferred tax 38 271)
58 271}
Overseas tax included in above
Corporation tax 16 -
Adiusiment in respect of prior years - -
Current tax 16 -
Deferred tax 291
307
8.DIVIDENDS PAID
2014 2014 2013 2013
Per share £'000 Per share £'000
Dvidends paid dunng the year relating to the pnar penod 4.00p 427 4 00p 425
Divdends to be paid
Interim dividend for 2014 paid on 6 February 2015 100p 107 100p 106
Proposed final dwvidend for 2014 3.00p 320 300p 31¢
400p 427 4 00p 425

The dwidends to be paud are not accounted for until they have been approved at the Annual General Mesting The amount will be accounted for as
an appropration of retained earnings In the year ending 31 December 2015

9 PROFIT AND DILUTED PROFIT PER SHARE

Both the basic and diluted profit per share calculations are based on a profit of £1,103,000 (2013 £355,000) The basic profit per share has been
calculated on a wetghted average of 10,673,506 {2013 10,596,839) erdinary shares being in 1ssue dunng the penod The diluted profit per share
has been calculated on the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue of 10,673,506 (2013 10,596,839) plus the dilutve potential ordinary shares
ansing from share options of 110,975 (2013 160,982) totaling 10,784,481 (2013 10,757,821)
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Long
Freehold Leasehold Total
£'00C £'000 £'000
Valuatron at 1 January 2014 9,035 2,524 11,559
Additions 22 - 22
Revaluation (132) 126 {6)
Valuation at 31 December 2014 8,925 2,650 11,575
Valuation at 1 January 2013 8,889 2,723 11,612
Revaluation 146 (199) {53)
Valuation at 31 December 2013 9,035 2,524 11,559
Histoneal cost
At 31 December 2014 4,823 728 5,551
At 31 December 2013 4,801 728 5,529
Long leasehold properties are those for which the unexpired term at the balance sheet date 1s not less than 50 years
All investment properties are held for use In operating leases and all properties generated rental income dunng the penod
Freehold and Long Leasehald properties were externally professionally valued at 31 December on an open market basis by
2014
£'000
Carter Towler 11,575

The valuations were carned out in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation and Guidance Notes published by The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors

Each year external valuers are appointed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board The valuers are selected based upen therr knowledge,
independence and reputation for valuing assets as those held by the group

Valuations are performed annually and are performed consistently across all investment properties in the group’s portfolio At each reporting date
appropnately qualified employees of the group venfy all significant inputs and review the computational outputs  Valuears submit ther report to the
Board on the outcome of each valuation round

Valuations take into account tenure, lease terms and structural condition The inputs underlying the valuations include market rent or business
profitability, likely ncentives offered to tenants, forecast growth rates, yields, EBITDA, discount rates, construction costs mcluding any specific site
costs {for example section 106), professional fees, developer’s profit Including contingencies, planning and construction tmelines, lease regear
costs, planning nsk and sales pnces based on known market transactions for smilar properties to those being valued
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES continued

Valuations are based on what 1s determined to be the highest and best use When considering the highest and best use a valuer will con=sider, on a
property by property basis, its actual and potential uses which are physically, legally and financially viable Where the highest and best use differs
from the existing use, the valuer will consider the cost and likelihood of achieving and implanting this change in amving at its valuation

There are often restnctions on Freehold and Leasehold property which could have a matenal impact on the realisation of these assets The most

significant of these occur when planning permission or lease extension and renegotiation of use are required or when a credit facility s in place
These restrchons are factored in the property’s valuation by the external valuer

IFRS 13 sets out a valuation hierarchy for assets and labilities measured at far value as follows
Level 1 valuation based on inputs on quoted market prices In active markets

Level 2 valuaticn based on inputs other than quoted prices Included within tevel 1 that maximise the use of observable data directly or from market
prices or ndirectly denved from market pnces

Level 3 where one or more Inputs to valuations are not based on observable market data
The inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs and the groups’ properties 1s detalled in the table below

Carrying/ Range
fair value {weighted
2014 Key average)
Class of property Level 3 £'000 Valuation techmque unobservable inputs 2014
Freehold - external valuation 8,925 Income capitalisaticn Estimated rental value £7
Persgftpa £7)
Equivalent Yield 7%
{7%s)
Long leasehold ~ external valuation 2,650 Income capitahisation Estimated rental value £7 -£26
Persqftpa (£19)
Equivalent yield 7 7% - 11 4%
{9%)
At 31 December 2013 11,575

There are interrelationships between all these inputs as they are determined by market conditions The existence of an increase in more than one
input would be to magnify the input on the valuation The impact on the valuation will be mitigated by the interrelationship of two inputs In opposite
drections, for example, an increase n rent may be offset by an increase i yeld

The table below illustrates the impact of changes in key unabservable Inputs on the carmying / farr value of the Group’s properties

Estimated rental value Equivalent y.eld

25 basis point contraction

10% increase or decrease or expansion

£°000 £'000

Freehold — external valuation 892 / {892) 276/ (260)
Long Leasehold — external valuation 265 / (265) 99 /(92)
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11. MINING RESERVES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Mining Mining Motor Cffice

reserves equipment vehicles equipment Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000

Cost at 1 January 2014 1.310 16,328 165 112 17,915
Exchange adjustment (44) (550) {4) @) {600}
Additions - 1,838 38 5 1,881
Digposals - (77) (30} - {107}
Cost at 31 December 2014 1,266 17,53% 169 115 19,089
Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2014 1,184 9,470 77 88 10,819
Exchange adjustment (38) {329) (1) (1) {369)
Charge for the year 3 2,641 31 7 2,682
Disposals - (77) (30 - (107}
Accumulated depreciation at 3t December 2014 1,149 11,705 77 94 13,025
Net book value at 31 December 2014 117 5,834 92 2 6,064
Cost at 1 January 2013 1,651 16,835 158 112 18,757
Exchange adjustment (341) {3,479) (21) {12) (3,853)
Additions - 2,972 75 12 3,060
Dispcsals - - (49) - (49)
Cost at 31 December 2013 1,310 16,328 165 112 17,915
Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2013 1,438 8,462 129 a0 10,119
Exchange adjustment {296) {(1,749) (15) 8) {2,068)
Charge for the year 42 2,757 12 6 2,817
Disposals in year - - (49) - {49)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2013 1,184 9,470 77 88 10,819
Net book value at 31 December 2013 126 6,858 88 24 7,096
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12 INVESTMENTS HELD AS NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2014 2013
Jont Joint
ventures 2014 ventures 2013
assets Other assets Other
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 3,235 156 3,061 131
Additions - - 75 26
Dividends receved (900) - - -
Exchange adjustment - - - (1
Share of gain in joint ventures 563 - 99 -
Net assets at 31 December 2,898 156 3,235 156
Loan to jont venture
At 1 January og4 - 1,117 -
Exchange ad;ustments {36) - (242) -
Additions 92 - 109 -
At 31 December 1,040 - 084 -
At 31 December 3,938 156 4,219 156
Prowizion for diminution in value
At 1 January - (5) - -
Transfer - - - {4)
Write back\Mdown) of investment - 1 - (1
A1 31 December - @) - (s)
Net book value at 31 December 3,938 152 4,219 161
2014 203
£'000 £'000
Net book value of unguoted investments 126 126
Net book and market value of investments listed on overseas stock exchanges 26 25
152 151
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13 JOINT VENTURES

The company owns 50% of the ssued share capital of Dragon Retall Properties Limited, an unlisied property mvestrnent company The remaning
50% 1s held by London & Associated Properties PLC Dragon Retall Properties Limited 1s incorporated in England and Wales It has issued share
capstal of 500,000 (2013 500,000} ordinary shares of £1 each

The company owns 12 5% of the units of Langney Shopping Centre Unit Trust, an unhsted property unit trust incorporated
in Jersey 12 5% of the units in the trust are held by London & Associated Propertes PLC and 75% are held by Columbus UK GP Iimited,
a partner acting on behalf of Columbus UK Real Estate Fund

The company owns 49% of the 1ssued share capital of Ezmbokodwent Mining {Pty) Limited, an unlisted coal production company
The company I1s Incorperated N South Africa It has issued share capital of 100 (2013 100} ordinary shares of ZAR1 each

Langney Dragon Eambokodweni

12 5% 50% 49% 2014 2013

£'00C £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 136 100 - 236 269
Profit and loss

{Loss)/Profit before tax 563 1 - 564 116

Taxation - 1} - (1) (7

{Loss)/Profit after taxation 563 - - 563 99
Balance sheet

Non-current assets 2,461 1,662 1,037 5,060 4,588

Current assets 385 1,347 3 1,735 2,054

Current iabifities (172) {(1,117) {1,040) {2,329) {1,753)

Non-current liabilibes . (1,299) (952) - {2,251) (2,337)

Share of net assets at 31 December 1,375 840 - 2,215 2,552

14 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The company owns the following ordinary share capital of the principal subsidianes which are included within the consolidated financial statements

Percentage of Country of

Activity share capita INcorporation

Mineral Products Limited Share dealing 100% England and Wales
Bisichi {Properties) Limited Property 100% England and Wales
Black Wattle Colliery {Pty} Limited Coal mining 62 5% South Afnca
Bisichi Coal Miring {Pty) Limited Coal mining 100% South Afnca
Bisichr Mining (Exploration) Limited Holding company 100% England and Wales
Ninghi Marketing Limited Dormant 90 1% England and Wales

Detads on the non-controlling interest in subsidianes are shown under note 26
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15 INVENTORIES

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Coal
Washed 606 481
Run of mine 1,070 754
Work in progress 45 487
Other 39 34
1,760 1,756
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade recevables 4,046 5,658
Amount owed by joint venture 2,168 2,232
QOther recevables 419 511
Prepayments and accrued income 227 258
6,860 8,659
17 AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Market value of listed Investments.
Listed in Great Bntan 758 778
Listed outside Great Britain 38 44
796 822
Onginal cost of listed investments 740 737
Unreahsed surplus of market value over cost 56 85

Dunng the year the held for trading investments were redefined as avalable for sale
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Trade payables 1,682 4,214
Amounts owed to joint ventures 305 1,205
Other payables 1,320 704
Accruals and deferred income 1,679 1,857
4,986 8,080
19. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Current Non-current
2014 2013 2014 2013
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Bank overdraft (secured) 2,119 3.029 - -
Bank foan (secured) 20 5,013 6,013 118
2,138 8,042 6,013 118
Bank overdraft and loan instalments by reference 1o the balance sheet date
Within one year 2,139 8,042
From one to two years 21 14
From twe to five years 5,992 104
8,152 8,160
Bank overdraft and loan analysis by ongin
United Kingdom 5,973 5.366
Southern Afnca 2,179 2,794
8,152 8,160

The United Kingdom bank loans and overdraft are secured by way of a first charge over the nvestment properties in the UK which are in¢luded in
the financial statements at a value of £11,575,000 At year-end an amount of £472,500 was held in a blocked account by Santander UK PLC that
relates to the new £6million loan faciity The funds have been blocked in order to satisfy the bank that certain conditions relating to the facility will be
fulfiled Subsequent to year end these condiions have been fulfilled and Santander UK PLC have confimed that these funds will be released in the
near future

The South Afncan bank loans are secured by way of a first charge over specific preces of rmiring equiprent, inventory and the debtors of the
relevant company which holds the foan which are included in the financial statements at a value of £6,264,000
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19 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS continued

Consistent with others in the mining and property Industry, the group monitors its capital by its gearng levels This is calculated as the net debt (oans less
cash and cash equivalents} as a percentage of the equity At year end the geanng of the group was 30 7% (2013 38 8%) which was calculated as follows

2014 2013
£°000 £'000
Total debt 8,152 8,160
Less cash and cash equivalents {2,838) (1,707)
Net debt 5,314 6,453
Total equity 17,315 16,628
Geanng 307% 38 8%
20 PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
As at 1 January 874 989
Exchange adjustment {31) (204)
Unwinding cf discount 87 89
As at 31 December 930 874
21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Total financial assets and habilities
The group’s financial assets and liabilites are as follows, representing both the far value and the carrying value
Financial
Liabilties
measured at  Assets at far
Loans and amortised value through
recevables cost profit and loss 2014 2013
£'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 2,838 - - 2,838 1,707
Investments held for trading - - 796 796 822
Other investments - - 152 152 151
Trade and other recevables 7,673 - - 7,673 9,385
Bank borrowings - (8,152) - (8,152} 8.160)
Finance leases - (195} - {195} (1986)
Other labilities - (4,838) - (4,836} (7,901)
10,511 {13,183) 948 (1,724} 4,192
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Investments held for trading fall under level 1 of the far value hierarchy into which far value measurements are recognised in accordance with the
levels set out In IFRS 7 Other investments are held at cost The directors are of the cpinion that the difference in value between cost and farr value of
other Investments 1s not significant or matenal The comparative figures for 2013 fall under the same category of financial nstrument as 2014

Treasury policy

Although no derivative transactions were entered into dunng the current and prior year, the group may use dernvative transactions such as interest
rate swaps and forward exchange contracts as necessary in order to help manage the financial nsks ansing from the group's actmities The main
nsks ansing from the group's financing structure are interest rate risk, ligudity nsk, market nsk, credit nsk, currency nsk and commodity prce nsk
There have been no changes dunng the year of the main risks ansing frem the group's finance structure The policies for managing each of these
nsks and the pnncipal effects of these policies on the results are summarised below

Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nisk 15 the nsk that the value of a financial instrument or cashflows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes In market
nterest rates Interest rate nsk anses from interest beanng financial assets and habilties that the group uses Treasury actvities take place under procedures
and policies approved and menitored by the Board to minimise the financial nsk faced by the group Interest beanng assets comprise cash and cash
equivalenis which are considered to be short-term iquid assets and loans 1o joint ventures Interest beanng borrowings comprise bank loans, bank
overdrafts and vanable rate finance lease obligations The rates of interest vary based on LIBOR in the UK and PRIME in Scuth Africa

As at 31 December 2014, with ather vanables unchanged, a 1% ncrease or decrease in interest rates, on investments and borrowings whose
interest rates are not fixed, would respectively decrease or increase the loss for the year by £79,000 (2013 £18,000) The effect on equity of this
change would be an equivalent decrease or Increase for the year of £79,000 (2013 £18,000)

Liquidity nsk

The group’s policy 1s to minmise refinancing nsk  Efficient treasury management and stnct credit control minimise the costs and nisks associated with
this policy which ensures that funds are avalable to meet cocmmitments as they fall due As at year end the group held borrowing faciities in the UK
in Bisichi Mining PLC and in South Afnca in Black Wattle Collery (Pty) Ltd

The following table sets cut the matunty profile of the financial habilites as at 31 December

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Within one year 7,400 15,956
From one to two years 223 a8
From two to five years 6,539 129
Beyond five years 134 134
14,296 16,257

The following table sets out the matunty profile of the financial labilities as at 31 December maturing within one year
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Within one month 1,587 10,207
From one to three months 2,438 1,808
From four to twelve months 3,375 3,751
7,400 15,956

In South Africa, an Increase In the structured trade finance facility from RB60milion (South Afncan Rand) to R80million was signed by Black Wattle
Colliery (Pty) Limited in October 2013 with Absa Bank Limited, a South African subsidiary of Barclays Bank PLC The facility 1s renewed annually at
30 June and I1s secured against inventory, debtors and cash that are held by Black Wattle Colliery (Pty) Limited
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

This facility comprises of a RB0mulion revolving loan to cover the workang capital requirements of the group’s South African operations, and a
R20millien loan facility to cover guarantee requirements related {o the group’s South Afncan mining operations  Dunng the year Black Wattle
breached one of the covenants of the facility related to the accounting net asset value of the company Due to the improved performance of the
company the breach was subsequently rectified and the breach did not affect the cngoing use of the facility, or the gbility to renew the facility again
at the appropnate times

In December 2014, the group signed a £6 million term loan facility with Santander This new loan replaces the previous £5 milion term facility and
overdraft held with Royal Bank of Scotland The Loan 1s secured aganst the group’s UK retail property portfolio The new debt package has a five
year term and 1s repayable at the end of the term The interest cost of the loan 1s 2 35% above LIBOR

As aresult of the completion of the above agreed banking facilities, the Directors believe that the group 1s well placed to manage its iquidity nsk

Credit nsk

The group 15 exposed to credt nsk on 1its cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recesvables and amounts owed by joint ventures as per the balance
sheet The maximum exposure to credt nsk 1s represented by the camying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet which at year end amounted
to £10,5611,000 {2013 £11,092,000) The group's credt risk 1s pnmanly attributable to its trade recevables The group had amounts due from its significant
revenue customers at the year end that represented 87% of the trade recavables balance These amounis have been subseguently settled

Trade debtor's credit ratings are rewewed regularty The group only deposits surplus cash with well-established financial nstitutions of high quality
credit standing As at year end the amount of trade receivables held past due date was £130,000 (2013 £137,000) To date, the amount of trade
recewables held past due date that has not subsequently been settled 1s £85,000 (2013 £118,000) Management have no reason to believe that
this amount will not be settfed

Financial assets matunty

On 31 December 2014, cash at bank and in hand amounted to £2,838,000 (2013 £1,707,000) which 1s nvested in short term bank deposits
maturing within one year beanng interest at the bank's varable rates Cash and cash eguivalents all have a matunty of less than 3 months At
year-end an amount of £472,500 was held in a blocked account by Santander UK PLC that relates to the new £6million loan faciity The funds have
been blocked in order to satisfy the bank that certain conditions relating to the facility will be fulfiled Subsequent 10 year end these condifions have
been fulfiled and Santander UK PLC have confimmed that these funds will be released in the near future

Commodity pnce nsk

Commeadity price nsk 1s the nsk that the group’s future earnings will be adversely impacted by changes in the market of commodites The group s
exposed to commeodity price nsk as its future revenues will be denved based on a contract with a physical off-take partner at prces that will be
determined by reference to market prices of coal at the delivery date

From time to time the group may manage 115 exposure to commodity pnee risk by entenng inte forward sales contracts with the goal of preserving
future revenue streams

Foreign exchange nsk

All frading 1s undertaken in the local currencies Funding i1s also in local currencies other than inter-company investments and loans and it 1s not the
group’s policy to obtain forward contracts to mitigate foreign exchange nsk on these amounts Dunng 2014 and 2013 the group did not hedge its
exposure of foregn investments held in foreign curencies

The table below shows the currency profiles of cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Sterling 1,697 139
South Afacan Rand 1,138 1,426
US Dollar 3 142
2,838 1,707

Cash and cash equivalents earn interest at rates based on LIBOR in Sterling and Prime in Rand
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
The tables below shows the currency profiles of net monetary assets and liabilities by functional currency of the group

South

African

Sterling Rands

2014 £'000 £°000
Sterling (2,515) -
South African Rand 153 618
US Dollar 20 -
(2,342) 618

South

Afncan

Sterling Rands

2013 £'000 €000
Sterling (4,082 -
South Afngan Rand 768 (1,065)
US Dallar 187 -
38127 (1,0865)

The drectors consider there to be no significant nsk from exchange rate movements of foreign currencies aganst the functional currencies of the
reporting comparves within the group  As such no sensitvity analysis Is prepared

22 DEFERRED TAXATION

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 1,902 2,437
Recognised in income 344 (262}
Exchange adjustment (38} (273)
2,208 1,902
The deferred tax balance compnses the following
Revaluation of properties 730 713
Capital allowances 1,418 1,183
Shart-term differences 60 6
2,208 1,902
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23 SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013
£'000 £000
Authonsed 13,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 1,300 1,300
Allotted and fully pad
2014 2013
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary 2014 2013
shares shares £'000 £000
At 1 January 10,636,839 10,556,839 1,064 1,056
Shares issued dunng the year in regard to employee share options exercised (note 25) 44,000 80,000 4 8
Qutstanding at 31 December 10,676,839 10,636,839 1,068 1,064
24 OTHER RESERVES
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Equity share options 566 501
Net premium on share capital n jont venture 86 86
652 587

25 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Details of the share option scheme are shown in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 29 and 30 under the heading Share option schemes
which i1s within the audited part of this report Further details of the share option schemes are set cut below

The Bisichi Mining PLGC Unapproved Option Schemes

Number of
Number of share share options Number of share
Penod within for which options 1ssued/exercised/ for which options
Subscnption which options outstanding at {cancelled) outstanding at
Year of grant pnce per share exercisable 31 December 2013 during year 31 December 2014
2004 149 0p Sep 2007 — Sep 2014 80,000 {80,000) -
2006 237 5p Oct 2009 - Oct 2016 325,000 - 325,000
2010 202 5p Aug 2013 - Aug 2020 80,000 - 80,000
2012 34 0p Oct 2012 - Sep 2022 233,000 (40,000} 193,000

The exercise of options under the Unapproved Share Option Schemes, for certain option issues, 1s subject to the satisfaction of objecive
performance conditions specified by the remuneration committee, which will conform to institutional shareholder guidelines and best practice
provisions in force from time to tme The performance conditions for the 2010 scheme, agreed by members on 31 August 2010 respectively,
requires growth in net assets over a three year penod to exceed the growth of the retal pnces index by a scale of percentages There are no

performance conditions attached to the other schemes
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25 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS continued

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
2014 average 2013 average
Number exercise pnce Number exercise price
Outstanding at 1 January 718,000 157 7p 718,000 157 7p
Cancelled dunng the year {80,000) {149 Op) - -
Exercised during the year {40,000) (34 Op) - -
Qutstanding at 31 December 598,000 167 1p 718,000 157 7p
Exercisable at 31 December 598,000 167 1p 718,000 157 7p
26 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
2014 2013
£000 £'000
As at 1 January 359 444
Share of profit for the year 100 3
Dividends received (42} -
Exchange adjustment (13} (94)
As at 31 December 404 359

The non-contreling interest compnses of a 37 5% shareholding n Black Wattle Colliery (Pty) Ltd A coal mining company incorporated in South Africa
Summansed financial nformation reflecting 100% of the underying subsidiary’s relevant figures, i1s set out below

2014
£000
Revenue 25,536
Expenses {24,866)
Profit for the year 670
Other comprehensive Income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 670
Batance sheet
Non-current assets 6,030
Current assets 8,054
Current Labilities {9,125)
Non-current habilities (2,260)
Net assets at 31 December 2,699
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26 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST continued

The non-controlling interest relates to the disposal of a 37 5% shareholding in Black Watile Collery (Pty) Ltd in 2010 The total 1ssued share capital in
Black Wattle Collery (Pty) Ltd was increased from 136 shares to 1,000 shares at par of R1 {South Afnican Rand) through the following shares 1ssue

- asubscrption for 483 ordinary shares at par by Bisichi Mining (Exploration) Limited increasing the number of shares held from 136 ordinary shares
to a total of 675 ordinary shares,

— & subscrption for 110 orcinary shares at par by Vunan Mining {Pty) Ltd,

— @ subscnption for 265 “A” shares at par by Vunan Mining (Pty) Ltd

Bisichi Mining (Exploration) Limited 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Bisichi Mining PLC incorporated in England and Wales

Vunan Mining {Pty) L.td 1s a South Afncan Black Economic Empowerrment company and minonty shareholder in Black Wattle Collery (Pty} Ltd

The “A" shares rank pan passu with the ordinary shares save that they will have no dwvidend nghts until such tme as the dwidends pad by Black
Wattle Colliery (Pty} Ltd on the crdinary shares subsequent to 30 October 2008 will eguate to R832,075,000

A non-controlling interest of 15% in Black Wattle Collery {Pty) Ltd is recognised for all profits distributable to the 110 ordinary shares held by Vunani
Mining (Pty) Ltd from the date of 1ssue of the shares (18 October 2010) An additional non-controling interest will be recognised for all profits
distnbutable to the 265 *A” shares held by Vunani Mining (Pty) Ltd after such time as the profits avalable for distnbution, n Black Wattle Golliery (Pty)
Ltd, betore any payment of dividends after 30 October 2008, exceeds R832,075,000

27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At 31 December During the year
Costs
Amounts Amcunts recharged Cash paid
owed owed {to)/by (to)/by
to related by related related related
party party party party
£'000 €000 £'000 £'000
Related party
London & Associated Properties PLC {note (a)) 3 - 138 (135)
Langney Shopping Centre Unit Trust (note (b)) - (168} - 64
Dragon Retal Properties Limited {note (c)) 305 (2,000} (174) (726)
Ezmbokodweni Mining (Pty) Limited (ncte (d)) - (1,.040) 92) -
As at 31 December 2014 308 (3,208) (128) {797)
London & Associated Properties PLC (note (a)} - - 138 (144)
Langney Shopping Centre Umit Trust (note (b)) - (232) - (217)
Dragon Retall Properties Limited [note (c)) 1,205 (2,000) {180) 180
Ezimbokodweni Mining {Pty) Limited {note (d}) - {984) {109} -
As at 31 December 2013 1,205 (3,216) (151) (181)
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

London & Associated Properties PLC 18 a substantial shareholder Langney Shopping Centre Unit Trust and Dragon Retall Properties Limited are
joint ventures and are treated as non-current asset investments Ezimbokodwen Mining {(Pty) Limited 18 a joint venture and is treated as a non-
current asset investment

(a) Loendon & Associated Properties PLC — Property management, office premises, general management, accounting and administration
services are provided for Bisichi Mining PLC and its UK subsidiares
(b) Langney Shopping Centre Unit Trust — Langney Shopping Centre Unit Trust 1s an unlisted property unit trust incorporated in Jersey

(c) Dragon Retail Properties Limited — {"Dragon”) 1s owned equally by the company and London & Asscciated Properties PLC During 2012 the
company lent £2millcn to Dragon at 6 875 per cent annual interest

(d) Ezimbokodweni Mining {Pty) Limited - Ezimbokodweni Mining s a prospective coal production company based in Scuth Afnica

Details of key management personnel compensation and interest in share options are shown in the Cirectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 28
and 29 under the headings Directors’ remuneration, Pension schemes and incentives and Share option schemes which 1s within the audited part of
this repert The total employers’ national Insurance paid in relation to the remuneration of key management was £114,000 {2013 111,000} In 2012
a lcan was made to one of the directors, Mr A R Heller, for £116,000 The loan amount outstanding at year end was £101,000 (2013 £116,000)
and a repayment of £15,000 {2013 nil) was made dunng the vear

28. EMPLOYEES

2014 2013

£'000 £'000
The average weekly numbers of employees of the group dunng the year were as follows
Production 213 220
Administratien 18 20

231 240

£'000 £°000
Staff costs durning the year were as follows
Salaries 4,676 5,395
Social secunty costs 117 115
Pension costs 209 220
Share based payments 55 120

5,057 5,850
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2014 2013

£'000 £'00¢
Commitments for capital expenditure approved but not contracted for at the year end 389 402
Share of commitment of capital expenditure in joint venture 1,402 1,451
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30 HEAD LEASE COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE PROPERTY LEASE RENTALS
Present value of head Leases on properties

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
2014 2013 2014 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 12 12 12 12
Second to fifth year 49 49 45 45
After five years 1,569 1,589 138 139
1,630 1,650 195 196
Discounting adjustment {1,435) (1,454) - -
Present value 195 196 195 196

Finance lease liabikties are in respect of leased investment property Many of the leases provide for contingent rents In addition to the rents above which
are a proportion of rental ncome Finance lease llablibes are effectively secured as the nghts to the leased asset revert to the lessor in event of default

The group leases out 1ts nvestment properties under cperating leases The future aggregate mmimum rentals recevable under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows

2014 2013

£'000 £000

Within one year 746 859
Second to fifth year 2,399 3,195
After five years 9,868 9,879
13,013 13,933

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Bank guarantees have been issued by the bankers of Black Wattle Colliery (Pty) Limited on behalf of the company to third parties The guarantees
are secured against the assets of the company and have been 1ssued in respect of the followang

2014 2013
£'000 £°000
Rail siding 158 62
Rehabilitation of mining land 1,114 1,183
Water & electncity 52 54
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £°000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 33 34 11,605
Investment in joint ventures 34 1,810 1,810
Other nvestments 34 7,712 1,714
Debtors ~ amounts dus in more than one year a5 1,127 1,313
10,683 16,442
Current assets
Debtors — amounts due within one year 35 2,981 3,082
Bank balances 988 799
3,969 3,881
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 36 {1,218) (7.425)
Net current Liabilities 2,751 (3.554)
Total assets less current habilities 13,434 12,898
Creditors — amounts faling due In more than one year — medum term bank loan 36 (64) {90)
Frovision for liabilities and charges a7 - -
Net assets 13,370 12,808
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 1,068 1,064
Share premium account 38 259 249
Revaluation reserve 38 - 5,832
Other reserves 38 566 503
Retained sarnings 38 11,477 5,360
Shareholders' funds 13,370 12,808

The company financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors on 27 Apnl 2015 and signed on 1its behalf by

A R Heller G J Casey Company Registration No 112155
Director Director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company accounting policies

for the year ended 31 December 2014

The following are the main accounting policies
of the company

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of nvestment
propertes, and in accordance with applicable
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

DIVIDENDS RECEIVED

Drglends are credited to the profit and loss
account when receved

DEPRECIATION

Provision for depreciation on tangible fixed
assets 1s made in equal annual mstalments to
write each item off over tts useful ife The rates
generally used are

Motor vehicles
Office equipment

25— 33 per cent
10— 33 per cent

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in
foreign currencies have been translated at the
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date All exchange differences are taken to the
profit and loss account

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment property portfoko is included in
the financal statements at open market valuation
An external professional valuation 1s carned out
annually by professional external surveyors
Surpluses and deficits ansing on valuations are
taken direct to the revaluation reserve No
depreciation or amortisation 1s provided in
respect of freehold and leasehold investment
propertes The directors consider that this
accounting policy, which s not in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, results in the
accounts gving a true and far view Depreciation
or amorbsation 1S only one of many factors
reflected in the valuation and the amount which
might otherwise have been shown cannot be
separately identified or quantified

On the 23rd of December 2014, the investment
property portfolo was transferred within the
group to Bisichi (Properties) Limited, a 100%
owned and controlled subsichary of the
company

INVESTMENTS

Investments of the company are stated in the
balance sheet as fixed assets at cost less
provisions for impairment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Bank loans and overdrafis

Bank loans and overdrafts are ncluded in creditors
on the company balance sheet net of the
unamortised cost of financing

Interest payable on those facilities 1s expensed
as a finance cost in the penod to which 1t
relates

Debtors

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are
held at present value where the interest that
would be recognised from discounting future
cash payments 1s considered to be matenal
Cther debtors do not carry mterest and are
stated at therr nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estmated
recoverable amounts

Creditors
Creditors are not interest beanng and are
stated at therr nominal value

JOINT VENTURES

Investments in jont ventures, being those
entites over whose activities the group has
jont control as established by contractual
agreement, are included at cost, less
Impaiment

DEFERRED TAXATION

As required by FRS 19 “Deferred Tax™, full
provision 15 made for deferred tax ansing from
all timing differences between the recogniton
of gains and losses i the financia statements
and recogrihon in the tax computation, except
for those timing differences in respect of which
the standard specifies that deferred tax should
not be recognised Deferred tax assets and
liabihes are calculated at the tax rates
expected to be effective at the time the timing
differences are expected to reverse

LEASED ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS

All leases are “Operating Leases” and the
annual rentals are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight ine basts over the
lease term Rent free penods or other
ncentives receved for entenng into a lease are
accounted for over the penod of the lease so
as to spread the benefit receved over the lease
term

PENSIONS

The company makes contnbutions to a money
purchase scheme and the costs are charged
to the profit and foss account in the penod to
which they relate

SHARE BASED REMUNERATION

The company operales a share option scheme
The fair value of the share option scheme 15
determined at the date of grant Thes far value
15 then expensed on a straight-hne basis over
the vesting period, based on an estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest The
farr velue of options granted 1s calculated using
a binormial model or Black-Scholes-Merton
model Details of the share options In issue are
disciosed in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 29 and 30 under the heading
Share option schemes which 15 within the
audited part of this report
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32 DIVIDENDS
The aggregate amount of dwdends compnses

2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Final dwvidends in respect of pnor year but not recognised as labiliies In that year 427 425

The aggregate amount of dividends to be paid and not recognised as liabilities as at year end 1s £427,000 (2013 £425,000)

33 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Investment properties
Long Motor Office

Freehold leasehotd vehicles equipment Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation at 1 January 2014 9,035 2,524 37 63 11,659
Additions 22 - - 3 25
Disposals 9,057) {2,524) - - (11,581)
Revatuation - - - - -
Cost or valuation at 31 December 2014 - - 37 66 103
At valuation - - - - -
At cost - - 37 66 103
- - 37 66 103
Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2014 - - i 53 54
Charge for the year - - 13 2 15
Disposals - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2014 - - 14 55 69
Net book value at 31 December 2014 - - 23 1 34
Net book value at 31 December 2013 9,035 2,524 36 10 11,605

Detalls of histoncal cost of Investment properties are shown in note 10 On the 23rd of December 2014, the investment property portfolio was

transferred within the group to Bisichi {Properties) Limited, a 100% owned and controlled subsidiary of the company
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34 INVESTMENTS

Joint
ventures Other
shares Shares Loans investments Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost at 1 January 2014 1,810 361 1,328 26 1,715
Invested dunng year ~ 5,995 3 - 5,998
Cost at 31 December 2014 1,810 6,356 1,331 26 7,713
Prowvision for imparrment
As at 1 January - - - {1) )
Transfer - - - -
As at 31 December 2014 - - - (1) n
Net book value at 31 December 2014 1,810 6,356 1,331 25 7,712
Net book value at 31 December 2013 1,810 361 1,328 25 1,714

Cther invesiments compnse £25,000 (2013 £25,000) shares

Included i the nvestments in shares during the year 1s an Investment in Bisichi (Properties) Limited, a 100% owned and controlled subsicary of

Bisichi Mining PLC  The investment relates to the transfer of the company’s directly owned UK property portfolio from the company to Bisichi

{Froperties) Limited on the 23rd of December 2014

Investments in subsicdianes are detaled in note 14 In the opinion of the directors the aggregate value of the Investment in subsidianes 1s not less

than the amount shown In these financial statements

35 DEBTORS
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Amounts due within one year
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 360 295
Trade recevables 109 163
Other debtors 118 135
Joint venture 2,168 2,232
Prepayments and accrued income 226 257
2,981 3,082
Amounts due in more than one year:
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 1,123 1,295
Deferred taxation 4 18
1,127 1,313
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36 CREDITCRS

2014 2013
£°000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Bank overdraft {secured) - 269
Bank loan {secured) 7 5,007
Jomnt venture 305 1,205
Current taxation 23 2
Other taxaton and social security 89 a5
Other creditors 444 323
Accruals and deferred income 350 524
1,218 7425
Amounts falling due 1n more than one year
Bank loan (secured) 64 a0
2014 2013
£'000 £'000
Bank and other loan instalments by reference to the balance sheet date
Within one year 5,007
From one to two years 7
From two to five years 57 83
ra 5,087
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37 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

2014 203
£'000 £'000
Deferred taxation
Balance at 1 January - 40
Prowvision - -
Transfer - (40)

No provision has been made for the approximate taxation habilty at 21 5% (2013 23 5%) of £nil (2013 £713,000) which would have ansen if the
investment properties were sold at the stated valuation

38 SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES

Share Share  Revaluation Other Retained Shareholders

capital prermium reserve reserve earnings funds

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2014 1,064 249 5,632 503 5,360 12,808
Dvidend paid - - - - (427) (427)
Disposal of investment property - - (5.632) - 5,632 -
Share options 4 10 - 63 - 77
Retamned loss for the year - - - - 912 6,544
Balance at 31 December 2014 1,068 259 - 566 11,477 13,370

A profit and loss account for Bisich Mining PLG has not been presented as permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006 The profit for
the financial year, before dwdends, was £912,000 (2013 £110,000)

Detalls of share capital are set out In note 23 and details of the share options are shown in the Duectors’ Remuneration Report on page 28 under the
heading Share option schemes which is within the audited part of this report and note 25
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At 31 December

Durning the year

Costs

Amounts recharged / Cash pad
owed accrued {to)/ by
by retated {to) / by related
party related party party
£'000 £'000 £'000

Related party:
Black Wattle Colliery (Pty) Lid (note (a)) (2.316) {1,009) 1,207
Ninghi Marketing Limited (note (b)) {102 - -
As at 31 December 2014 (2,418) {1,009) 1,207
Black Watlle Colliery {Pty) Ltd {ncte (a)) (2.514) (1.264) 1,177
Ninghi Marketing Limited (note (b)) (102) - -
As at 31 December 2013 (2,616) (1,264} 1,177)

(a) Black Wattle Colliery (Pty} Ltd - Black Wattle Colliery (Fty) Lid 1s a coal mining company based in South Africa

(b} Ninghi Marketing Limrted - Ningh Marketing Limited 1s a dormant coal marketing company incorporated in England & Wales

In addition to the above, the company has 1ssued a company guarantee of R17,000,000 (2013 R17,000,000} (South Afncan Rand) to the bankers
of Black Wattte Colliery (Pty} Ltd In order to cover bank guarantess 1ssued to third parties in respect of the rehabilitation of mining land

A provision of £102,000 has been raised against the amaount owing by Ninghi Marketing Limited as the company 1s dormant

In 2012 a lcan was made to one of the directors, Mr A R Heller, for £116,000 Interest 1s repayable on the loan at arate of 6 14% There 1s no fixed
repayment date The loan amount outstanding at year end was £101,000 (2013 £116,000} and a repayment of £15,000 (2013 nil) was made

during the year

Under Financial Reporting Standard 8 Related Party Disclosures, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing transactions

with cther wholly owned group comparnies

Details of other related party transactions are given in note 27 of the Group financial statements
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